


• Get It Done
• Get It Done Now
• Get It Done Very Well…

Always Have The End In Mind

EXECUTION

• Be Responsive  And 
Passionate

• Surpass Customer’s 
Expectation Always

• Maintain Quality Standards
• Be Meticulous - Make It 

Simple Always
• Be Professional - Integrity, 

Friendly And Genuine

EXCELLENCE

• Own The Talk
• Go The Extra Mile, 

Solve The Problem
• Show Initiative
• Break Barriers

ENTERPRISE

OUR MISSION
 what we exist to do

To create a safe haven for pension 
assets and deliver world-class 
custodian services, using skilled 
and highly-motivated staff, 
state-of-the-art technology and 
a stakeholder approach in the 
conduct of our business.

Our vision is to be the leading 
Pension Custodian Service 
Provider.

OUR VISION
 what we strive to achieve
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At UBA Pensions, we deliver 
best-in-class custodian services. 

Our commitment is ensuring 
that our clients receive quality, 

efficient and responsive services. 
We value relationships as much 

as we value our clients.

RETIREE SATISFACTION
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chairman’s statement

Introduction
distinguished Shareholders,

it is with great pleasure that i present to you the 2018 Annual report and Financial Statements of our Company, 
uBA pensions Custodian Limited.

permit me to start by thanking our directors and shareholders for their support throughout the year. riding 
on the back of this support and improving business climate plus our strong service and operational capabil-
ities, we recorded appreciable growth in profitability and assets under custody. we also successfully capital-
ised on our decade long experience coupled with improved technology and investment in human resources 
to defend our market share and increase returns to all our stakeholders. in all, we remained committed to our 
strategic goal to be the leading pension custodian services provider in Nigeria.

“ “
Total Retirement saving 
Accounts as of December 
2018 was 8.4million 
representing only 12% 
of the total workforce, 
thus presenting greater 
opportunity for growth . 
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The Business Environment: stability 
The global economy was largely stable in 2018 
as real gdp remained flat at 3.7% year on year 
in spite of global trade disputes and financial vulner-
abilities. The growth was buoyed by robust domestic 
demand in the developing countries, historical lows 
unemployment rates in advanced nations, while 
many commodities exporting countries continued the 
gradual recoveries recorded since 2017. however, 
the economic growth in Africa moderated from 3.4% 
in 2017 to 3.2% in 2018 occasioned by moderate 
global growth and moderate commodities prices.

The Nigerian economy expanded in 2018 with a gdp 
growth rate of 1.93% compared to 0.82% in 2017, 
the growth represented the fastest expansion since 
2015. The non-oil sector, mainly manufacturing 
activities and services, expanded by 2% during the 
year compared with 1.14% for oil sector. The drag 
from oil sector was premised on the flat production 
at an average of 1.8mbpd in 2018 (2017: 1.8mbpd) 
and average crude oil price of uS$67.7m per barrel. 
(2017: uS$65). in addition, underpinning the growth 
rate of 2018 was strong FX liquidity and sustained 
exchange rate stability.

Nigeria’s external reserves grew 13.3% in 2018 from 
uS$38.1 billion in december 2017 to $43.1 billion 
in december 2018. headline inflation declined from 
15.3% in december 2017 to 11.44% in december 
2018. Total disbursements from FAAC grew by 
32.8% in 2018 at ₦8.524 trillion compared with 
₦6.418 trillion disbursed in 2017 indicating consis-
tent increase in revenues and disbursements, thus 
impacting favourably on the purchasing powers and 
economic growth of all government tiers. in addition, 
pension remittance from public sectors continued to 
record appreciable increase in 2018.

Total retirement Saving Accounts as of december 
2018 was 8.4million representing only 12% of the 
total workforce, thus presenting greater opportunity 
for growth . pensions contribution for 2018 totalled 
₦696 billion, a growth of 14% when compared 
to 2017 figures of ₦611 billion. pensions contribu-
tion by public Sector grew by 20% to ₦308 billion, 
while that of private Sector grew by 10% to ₦387 

billion. pension assets rose by 15% from ₦7.52 trillion 
in 2017 to ₦8.64 trillion in 2018. The muted growth 
in comparison with 22% recorded in 2017 resulted 
from weak return on investments. The Nigerian All 
Share index and equity market capitalization fell by 
17.81% and 13.87% respectively during the year, pre-
mised on perceived political risks, oil price volatility 
and rising global yields. in addition, the yield on fixed 
income investments also declined during the year.

Financial Highlights: 
Improved Efficiencies 
Our Company continued its growth trajectory 
in 2018, as we grew on profitability as well as Asset 
under Custody. profit before taxation rose by 11% 
to ₦5.3 billion from ₦4.8 billion in 2017. This 
remarkable growth was premised on 9% growth in 
custody fee income as well as 21% reduction in total 
operating expenses. The growth of Custody fee was 
occasioned by a 14% growth in Asset under Custody, 
from ₦1.8 trillion in 2017 to ₦2.06 trillion in 2018. 
however, in response to the macro-economic chal-
lenges, the investment income was muted in 2018.

we were able to improve on internal efficiencies 
thereby reducing cost-to-income ratio from 27% 
in 2017 to 21% in 2018 resulting in 28% positive 
variance on operating expenses. Overall, we closed 
2018 financial year with a profit after tax of ₦3.9 
billion representing an 8% year-on-year growth.

Consistent with our tradition of maintaining a very liq-
uid balance sheet, 87% of our assets were invested in 
liquid and low risk financial instruments. in addition, 
we grew shareholders fund by 13% in the year, com-
pared with 11% in 2017, portraying our commitment 
to earning retentions and increased capital buffers.

Dividend: committed to Higher 
Returns to shareholders
The Board had recommended an interim dividend 
of ₦1.67 for every ordinary share of ₦1.00 each 
for the 2018 financial year, penCom had already 
approved this recommendation; the interim dividend 
declared amounted to ₦3.34 billion. The dividend 
payment is an affirmation of our commitment 
to deliver superior value to stakeholders at all times.
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Outlook: Excellent service Delivery
Excellent service delivery is pivotal in achieving sus-
tained growth, thus we would harness our decade 
long experience in pension business, our people 
and technology towards customers’ satisfaction and 
maintenance of our market share. in furtherance 
of our digital journey, we engaged a reputable firm 
of iT Consultants to build a company-wide Enterprise 
resource planning (Erp) platform which we are 
confident will facilitate Straight-Through processing 
(STp), and further improve our efficiency and greatly 
reduced processing time with better customer 
experience.

The Erp will go-live in the later part of 2019 and 
will greatly assist us as we foray into the micro 
pension business landscape where technology is 
greatly required.

Appreciation: 
On behalf of all of us in uBA pensions, we would 
like to express our gratitude to our customers for 
their continued support and patronage over the last 
decade. we thank you for your continued support, 
kind suggestions, frank feedback and unwavering 
loyalty. we assure you that you will always be our 
utmost priority and you will always be the First. Once 
again, to our Board members, it has been a great 
pleasure working with you. i thank you for your 
dedication, rapport and direction which speak elo-
quently to the sterling year-on-year performance of 
the Company.

i would like to say thank you to the management 
and staff of uBA pensions for your commitment, 
dedication and resilience. you have proved again 
and again that nothing is impossible if we share 
a common dream. well done! As we go into 2019, 
we encourage you to do more.

 

20% 
industry Contribution

15% 
industry pension Asset

11% 
profit Before Tax

ChAirmAN'S STATEmENT (continued)
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conclusion
distinguished shareholders, we reiterate our commit-
ment to delivering value consistently to all our stake-
holders. we will continue to uphold our ‘customer 
first’ value proposition in all we do. we will continue 
to pursue and deliver strong returns to our share-
holders and in doing this, we will do our utmost and 
ensure that we remain professional and responsive 
to all our stakeholders. 

we remain confident that we will continue to enjoy 
your support while looking forward to serving you 
better in 2019. 

Thank you.

Victor OsADOLOR
Chairman, Board of Directors
FRC/2016/ICAN/000000/13923

ChAirmAN'S STATEmENT (continued)
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“
“

It is exciting to report 
that we grew top and 
bottom lines in double 
digit, as our focus on 
operational excellence 
presents opportunities for 
efficiency gains. Overall, 
we grew profit before tax 
by 11% to N5.31billion.

ceo's statement

i feel honoured to present to you, the annual report for the 2018 financial year. 

it was a landmark year for us at uBA pensions, as we attained the two trillion-naira mark in assets under 
custody. we closed the year with ₦2.06 trillion assets under custody, representing 24% market share of 
the Nigerian pension assets, which stood at ₦8.64trillion as at december 2018. The remarkable growth in 
assets under custody compensated for the regulatory-induced reduction in custody fee rate, as the National 
pension Commission embarked on a 3-year accelerated revision in custody fee rate, which started mid-2018. 
Nonetheless, i am more than ever optimistic on the prospect for our business, as new opportunities for growth 
will compensate for regulatory pressure on custody fee rate. it is exciting to report that we grew top and 
bottom lines in double digit, as our focus on operational excellence presents opportunities for efficiency gains. 
Overall, we grew profit before tax by 11% to ₦5.31billion.
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Our industry continues to evolve, as concerted 
effort of all stakeholders; regulator, pension fund 
administrators and custodians, helps to extract 
latent opportunities in growing pension assets. Total 
 pension assets grew 15% to ₦8.64trillion during the 
year and penetration level improved, as reflected 
in the 8% growth in retirement savings accounts to 
8.4million. interestingly, penetration level remains 
barely 12% of the labour force, thus reinforcing the 
creativity of all stakeholders in harnessing this huge 
opportunity. Beyond the fact that enrolment in the 
contributory pension scheme provides a safety net 
and social insurance for Nigerians, it fosters a cul-
ture of  collegiate savings, which can be channelled 
to investments in long term infrastructure projects, 
capable of stimulating economic growth and improv-
ing the standards of living in the country.  

Key strategic Objectives – customer First 
Always
Our 2018 strategy was anchored on excellent ser-
vice delivery, growth in asset under custody and 
operational efficiency. i am happy to report that we 
made good progress across all our strategic themes, 
which we believe are pertinent to achieving our 
broad objectives;

•	  Becoming a leading reference in pension cus-
tody services

•	  recognised as one of the top-tier pension custo-
dians in Nigeria in all leading metrics

•	 Branded with the ‘Customer first’ philosophy 

•	  investment in state-of-the-art technology to drive 
efficiency

•	  maintaining a robust risk management 
framework 

•	 Effective Corporate governance

•	 Enhancing people productivity

The Operating Environment
The global economic growth remained upbeat 
in 2018, sustaining the 3.7% growth rate. 

Notwithstanding the relative weakness of emerg-
ing markets, the recovery of economies like russia, 
Argentina, Brazil and Nigeria, which were hitherto in 
recession buoyed output growth. more so, stronger 
momentum in developed economies like the united 
States propped up global growth. 

in Nigeria, stable oil production and price rally sup-
ported gdp growth, with the economy recording 
an improved 1.9% growth in the year, compared to 
0.8% in 2017.  whilst the monetary policy author-
ity had sentiment for stronger economic growth, it 
maintained its tight measures to avert inflationary 
and exchange rate pressures. interestingly, headline 
inflation which peaked at 18.7% in 2017 eased to 
11.3%, as the stable foreign exchange environment 
and tight monetary policy stemmed both cost-push 
and money-pull inflationary pressures. The CBN 
ensured adequate supply of foreign currency to both 
the official and parallel markets, keeping the Naira 
stable around the ₦360/uSd equilibrium. 

Being a pre-election year, the interest rate environ-
ment was relatively volatile, as initial downtrend in 
the sovereign yield curve was reversed by capital 
flight in the second half of the year, as foreign inves-
tors sell-down equity and fixed income securities in 
the Nigerian market ahead of the 2019 elections. 
Notably, yield on the one-year treasury bill oscillated 
between 14% and 18% in the year. Nonetheless, 
the average yield on sovereign securities were 
 relatively lower in 2018, as the increased focus of 
the federal government on external borrowing, 
including refinancing of domestic debt moderated 
yield on both bonds and treasury bills; a phenom-
enon which subdued our interest income potentials. 

The Nigerian equity market capitalisation plunged 
14% to close the year at ₦11.72 trillion, reflecting 
the 17.8% dip in the All Share index (the benchmark 
index). The bearish pressure in the equity  market 
reflected investor risk-off sentiment during the 
period, given macro and policy uncertainties on the 
run-up to the 2019 elections. 

CEO'S STATEmENT (continued)
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13% 
Shareholder’s Fund

9% 
Total Assets growth

14% 
Assets under Custody

Major Industry Events in 2018
The pension industry was relatively active during 
the year. key regulatory enactments by penCom as 
well as developments in the industry during the year 
include the following:

•	 micro pension plan (mpp) – The Commission 
released the much-awaited guidelines and 
Framework on micro pension plan and also 
 continued its engagement and sensitisation 
of key stakeholders in the informal sector, in 
preparation for the formal launch of the plan. 
The plan seeks to expand the coverage of the 
pension plan to the informal sector, mainly 
self- employed persons, who are 18 years and 
above. Contributors could make payments at 
any  convenient frequency which could be daily, 
weekly, monthly.  participation is voluntary and 
subscribers can switch to Contributory pension 
Scheme once employed in the formal sector.

•	 multi-Fund Structure – The new structure was 
introduced through the Amended regulation 
on investment of pension Assets. prior to this, all 
pension contributions were invested in a single 
fund bucket. The multi-fund aims at aligning 
 contributors’ risk profile and investment horizon 
(age) by unbundling the old rSA Fund into three 
funds (Fund i, Fund ii & Fund iii) while main-
taining the retiree Fund (now Fund iv). The new 

structure provided for the possibility of allowing 
contributors to decide their investment prefer-
ence, along their risk appetite, and also based 
on their age bracket.

•	 revised Fee Structure – The fee structure was 
revised downward for all categories of pension 
funds in preparation for the multi-Fund regime. 
The review is being implemented in three phases; 
July 2018, January 2019 and January 2020. The 
first phase was implemented in July 2018, with 
attendant effect on the revenue of operators.

•	 registration with NimC - All retirement Savings 
Account holders both active and retired were to 
approach their respective pFAs to provide their 
NiN and BvN as well as other mandatory bio 
data to enable the Commission to comply with 
the directives of the Federal government on the 
mandatory requirement for all Nigerians to have 
National identification Number.

•	 revised procedure on processing of death 
Benefits - The regulation addressed complaints 
from retirees who stated that their retirement 
benefits were paid to their next of kin or bene-
ficiaries while they were still alive and in active 
service without their consent. pFAs are now to 
conduct search at the probate registry to confirm 
genuineness of any document presented and 
also to contact the employer of the deceased 

CEO'S STATEmENT (continued)
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in verification/confirmation of the death of 
the employee.

•	 guidelines On voluntary Contributions - The 
guidelines on voluntary Contributions (vC) 
under the CpS and Explanatory Notes were 
issued. The new guidelines clarify what can be 
withdrawn by contributor, waiting period and the 
tax implications.

 A New pension Fund Administrator – The Commission 
finally issued an operating license to Academic 
Staff union of universities through a vehicle called 
Nigerian university pension management Company 
(NupEmCO) for it to manage the retirement Saving 
Accounts of its members and affiliate organizations. 
The license covers the employees and members 
of Academic Staff union of universities (ASuu); 
National universities Commission (NuC); Non-
Academic Staff union of Educational and Associated 
institutions (NASu); Senior Staff Association of 
Nigerian universities (SSANu); and National 
Association of Academic Technologist (NAAT).

2018 Performance Highlights
despite the challenging regulatory and macroeco-
nomic environment, our profit Before Tax grew by 
11% from ₦4.8 billion in 2017 to ₦5.3 billion in 
2018 and the Assets under Custody recorded 14% 
growth from ₦1.8 trillion in 2017 to ₦2.06 trillion 
in 2018. Leveraging on improved operations, we 
reduced OpEX by 21%, from ₦1.7billion in 2017 to 
₦1.4billion in 2018.

Our total assets grew by 9% from N10.02billion 
in 2017 to ₦10.94billion in 2018. Furthermore, 
Shareholder’s Fund increased by 13% from 
 ₦4.5billion in 2017 to ₦5.1bn in 2018. reflecting 
our focus on internal efficiencies, cost-to-income 
ratio reduced by 100bps to 21% in 2018, compared 
to 22% in 2017. 

strategic Outlook for 2019
Our strategic imperatives for 2019 would be to 
 consolidate our leadership position in the industry as 
one of the top tier pension custodian in the country. 
we would leverage on our investment in technology 
and human capital to provide efficient and effec-
tive value creation to our esteemed customers. we 
will continue to deepen our market share, ensure 
compliance with regulatory guidelines, with utmost 
 corporate governance practices, knowing that we 
are entrusted with the pensionable assets of vast 
majority of Nigerians.

we remained committed to providing superior val-
ues to all our stakeholders. we are confident that 
2019 would culminate into another giant stride as we 
seek to consolidate on our position, as one of the top 
tier pension Custodians in Nigeria. 

conclusion
The pension industry in 2019 will be exciting as 
we expect to onboard more than twenty million 
Nigerians on the micro pension plan. we look for-
ward to this feat, with confidence to be a leading 
force in that space. Furthermore, in anticipation of 
increased foreign portfolio inflows post-elections, 
we look forward to stronger economic growth, which 
portends opportunities for business growth.

i like to appreciate the Board of directors of their 
unflinching commitment and positive leadership. 
distinguished Shareholders, on behalf of my team, 
i appreciate your kind support and i am confident 
that we will achieve significant milestones in 2019, 
as we look forward to delivering superior returns to 
you at all time. 

Thank you.

BAYO YUsUF
Managing Director / CEO

CEO'S STATEmENT (continued)
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Our Board Of Directors
VIcTOR OsADOLOR (chairman)

victor Osadolor is the group deputy managing director, united Bank for Africa pLC and doubles as the Chief 
Executive Officer for uBA Africa overseeing the Bank’s operations in 19 African countries. he is also the Chairman 
of uBA pension Custodians Limited and a Non-Executive director of Africa Finance Corporation (AFC). As the 
CEO, uBA Africa, victor is responsible for developing and executing strategies designed to actualize uBA’s pan 
African Bank aspiration.

until his appointment as the group deputy managing director of uBA pLC, victor served as group director, heirs 
holdings limited between 2014 and 2015. prior to this, victor was at different times between 2012 and 2014, 
the Chief Operating Officer for Corporate and investment Banking as well as the Chief Strategist for Ecobank 
Transnational incorporated (ETi). in these capacities, victor worked out of Johannesburg South Africa and Lome 
Togo. he had also served in different Executive management roles at Standard Trust Bank and uBA Capital. 
victor started his career 30 years ago as an auditor with Coopers & Lybrand (Now pricewaterhouse Coopers).

victor holds a second class (upper division) B.Sc (hons) degree in Accounting from the university of Benin. he is 
a Fellow of the institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (iCAN), an alumnus of harvard Business School's 
Advanced management program (Amp) and an honorary life member of the Chartered institute of Bankers of 
Nigeria (CiBN).

victor Osadolor is an avid reader, loves playing chess and happily married with children.

BAYO YUsUF ( managing director )

Bayo is an Associate of the Chartered insurance institute of Nigeria and a graduate of Actuarial Science from 
university of Lagos. he worked with h. Clarkson, Edu and partners in various capacities in its pension and 
Actuarial Services department where he served as a co-opted civilian member in the pension Committee set up 
by the Federal military government in November 1994 to review the Nigerian Armed Forces pension Scheme. 

he joined uBA Capital and Trust Limited in January 1995 where he worked for seven years before he left as 
head, Corporate pensions to join NAL Asset management & Trustees Limited as the pioneer head of pensions 
in February 2002. he returned to uBA Capital & Trust Limited as head, Trust resources department in April 
2004, a position he held before he was seconded to uBA pensions Custodian Limited in August 2005 where he 
occupied the position of group head, Custody Services.

Bayo has attended several local and international courses and is an Alumnus of the prestigious manchester 
Business School, uk and Lagos Business School.

AwELE ELUMELU ( non-executive director )

Awele Elumelu holds an mBBS from the university of Benin and an mSC from the London School of hygiene and 
Tropical medicine. She has been involved in the Nigerian private sector for the past 10 years.

her working career spans over 18 years with experience in several areas of medicine and Business development. 
She was appointed into the Board of uBA pensions in 2009.

TUKUR B. INgAwA ( independent non-executive director )

dr. Tukur Bello ingawa, retired Federal permanent Secretary, is a contemporary civil servant combining the best 
skills and abilities required to drive a modern public service. he has served as Secretary to the State government, 
permanent Secretary/director general in a number of ministries and departments, Commissioner for Finance, 
director of boards of companies and also as Secretary to the iCpC.

Before he joined the Board in march, 2013 he had served as permanent Secretary in the ministry of works 
housing and urban development and the ministry of police Affairs; from where he retired in September, 2012. 
dr ingawa obtained his doctorate degree at the university of London, united kingdom and was a lecturer at the 
Bayero university kano.

he has attended several courses both local and international and is an alumnus of the prestigious harvard 
Business School and Stanford Business School with many publications to his name. he is a recipient of the 
National honours Award of “Officer of the Order of the Niger” OON, and the National institute for policy and 
Strategic Studies, kuru, Jos.
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ABBAs j. MUHAMMED ( independent non-executive director )

mr mohammed is a Chartered Accountant, and holds first degree in Accounting and a master degree in Business 
Administration from Ahmadu Bello university, Zaria.

he began his career with the Sokoto State ministry of Finance, Budget and Economic planning.

Subsequently, he moved into the Banking industry, with stints at Bank of Credit and Commerce international (Nig.) 
Limited; intercity Bank plc; First interstate Bank plc and unity Bank plc.

he was at different times an Executive director with Afribank plc., and Asset management Corporation of Nigeria.

A member of the institute of directors Nigeria, he holds the traditional title of Ajiyan gwandu (Treasurer, 
gwandu Emirate).

UcHE IKE ( non-executive director )

uche is the group Chief risk Officer, is a Chartered Accountant, with an mBA from the university of Benin.

he has been with the group since 2006 and has served in a number of prominent roles, first as group head of 
Operations in South and South East Banks and then for a period of five years, as general manager at the Bank’s 
New york branch.

uche has over 27 years of banking experience.

PATRIcK OMOIgHE ( executive director )

patrick graduated with a Second Class upper degree in Agric-Economics from the university of ibadan in 1988, 
and went on to acquire two masters degrees in Business Administration (university of Benin, 1995) and in Banking 
and Finance (Bayero university, kano 2004). patrick is also a Fellow of the institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Nigeria, Chartered institute of Taxation and institute of Credit Administration; and an Associate of the institute of 
Cost and management Accountants of Nigeria.

he started his career with Binder Balogun Badejo & Co as an Auditor, and spend 6 years in Audit Consulting 
before joining uBA (Standard Trust Bank) in 1998. he has over 20 years of banking experience in Operations, 
insurance, Audit & risk management, Financial and internal Controls. 

At various times he held the position of head of Audit & Control, Chief internal Auditor and then regional 
Audit & Control manager for East & Southern African Countries covering kenya, uganda, Tanzania, 
mozambique & Zambia.

prior to joining uBA pensions, he was the group’s internal Control Coordinator for uBA Anglophone Countries, 
where he had responsibility for ensuring effective discharge of control functions in several subsidiaries.

he joined uBA pensions as an Executive director, in charge of Operations & Technology in march 2017.

patrick is happily married with children.
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BAYO YUsUF ( managing director )

Bayo is an Associate of the Chartered insurance institute of Nigeria and a graduate of Actuarial Science from 
university of Lagos. he worked with h. Clarkson, Edu and partners in various capacities in its pension and 
Actuarial Services department where he served as a co-opted civilian member in the pension Committee set up 
by the Federal military government in November 1994 to review the Nigerian Armed Forces pension Scheme. 

he joined uBA Capital and Trust Limited in January 1995 where he worked for seven years before he left as 
head, Corporate pensions to join NAL Asset management & Trustees Limited as the pioneer head of pensions 
in February 2002. he returned to uBA Capital & Trust Limited as head, Trust resources department in April 
2004, a position he held before he was seconded to uBA pensions Custodian Limited in August 2005 where he 
occupied the position of group head, Custody Services.

Bayo has attended several local and international courses and is an Alumnus of the prestigious manchester 
Business School, uk and Lagos Business School.

PATRIcK OMOIgHE ( executive director )

patrick graduated with a Second Class upper degree in Agric-Economics from the university of ibadan in 1988, 
and went on to acquire two masters degrees in Business Administration (university of Benin, 1995) and in Banking 
and Finance (Bayero university, kano 2004). patrick is also a Fellow of the institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Nigeria, Chartered institute of Taxation and institute of Credit Administration; and an Associate of the institute of 
Cost and management Accountants of Nigeria.

he started his career with Binder Balogun Badejo & Co as an Auditor, and spend 6 years in Audit Consulting 
before joining uBA (Standard Trust Bank) in 1998. he has over 20 years of banking experience in Operations, 
insurance, Audit & risk management, Financial and internal Controls. 

At various times he held the position of head of Audit & Control, Chief internal Auditor and then regional 
Audit & Control manager for East & Southern African Countries covering kenya, uganda, Tanzania, 
mozambique & Zambia.

prior to joining uBA pensions, he was the group’s internal Control Coordinator for uBA Anglophone Countries, 
where he had responsibility for ensuring effective discharge of control functions in several subsidiaries.

he joined uBA pensions as an Executive director, in charge of Operations & Technology in march 2017.

patrick is happily married with children.

TEMITOPE HAssAN ( company secretary/legal advisor )

Temitope holds Bachelors’ degrees in Laws from the London South Bank university, u.k, in insurance from the 
university of Lagos, and a master degree in Business Administration from the Obafemi Awolowo university, 
ile-ife.

She joined uBA pensions Custodian Limited in July 2017 from Skye Bank pLC, where she was the head of 
the Company Secretariat department. She started her Legal career with the Law Firm of Olaniwun Ajayi LLp, 
previously worked with industrial & general insurance Company Limited and African Alliance Limited, where she 
garnered considerable experience in Business development and Corporate Strategies. with over 20 years work 
experience, she has developed valuable cognitive skills and expertise in Company Secretariat practice, Legal 
drafting, dispute resolution, Corporate governance Advisory, investor relations, regulatory Compliance and 
Corporate Services.

Temitope has attended several courses overseas and within Nigeria. She is a certified Trainer and an Accredited 
mentor of the National mentoring pilot project, uk. She is a Fellow of the institute of Chartered Secretaries & 
Administrators of Nigeria and is married with children.

cHRIs OjIEABU ( chief compliance officer )

Chris Ojieabu, LL.m, BL, mBA, a Barrister & Solicitor of the Supreme Court of Nigeria. he was called to the 
Nigerian Bar in 1992 after obtaining a Bachelor of Laws degree from the university of Benin in 1991.

Chris has been involved in active Legal practice with reputable Law Firms and was head of Corporate Trust, uBA 
Trustees Limited before joining uBA pensions.

he has also attended several professional courses and training programmes at various levels and an alumnus of 
the Senior management programme of Lagos Business School.

Our Management Team
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RAsHIDAH ADEKOLA ( chief finance officer )

rashidah Adekola holds BSc and mSc degrees in geography from Obafemi Awolowo university ile-ife and 
university of ibadan, ibadan, respectively. She is also an Associate member of both the institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Nigeria and the Chartered institute of Taxation of Nigeria 

She has over 25 years’ experience in Audit, Banking Operations, internal Control and Finance and has worked as 
CFO, uBA Liberia; regional Finance Officer, uBA west Africa1; and CFO, uBA Anglophone Africa.

TOMI AjAYI ( head, business development )

Tomi has almost two decades of experience in the financial services industry - Banking and pensions Custody. 
She joined uBA pensions in 2006, and is responsible for managing the business development and clients’ 
services desk.

Tomi’s experience covers the following areas; credit appraisal and management, customer relationship and crisis 
management as well as business development.

She is a Chartered Accountant (ACCA) and a graduate of mathematics & Statistics and masters of risk management 
(mrm) both from the university of Lagos. Tomi is an alumnus of the Senior management programme (Smp) of the 
Lagos Business School, where she is also studying for an Executive masters in Business Administration (EmBA).

ABIODUN ADEDOKUN ( head, internal control )

Biodun is an Associate of the institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria and a graduate of Applied Accounting.

he has over 18 years of accounting and audit experience. Biodun had worked with Steyr Nigeria Limited, BdO 
professional Services, Lafarge Africa plc and First pension Custodian Limited where he occupied positions in 
various capacities before joining uBA pensions in 2008.

he has attended several trainings and he is an alumnus of Lagos Business School.

DANIEL wAjUIHIAN ( chief risk officer )

daniel is the Chief risk Officer of uBA pensions Custodians Ltd. his career has been in Law, Estate management, 
Corporate Banking, Branch Business development and risk management.

he has worked in a number of reputable institutions, including Access Bank, NNB international Bank and united 
Bank for Africa. he holds Bachelor’s and master’s degrees in Law from Edo State university and university of 
Lagos, respectively. 
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ROTIMI LAwAL ( head, settlement & corporate action )

rotimi Lawal is a Fellow of the institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria and an Associate member of the 
Chartered institute of Taxation. he is an alumnus of Lagos Business School and also a Banking/Finance graduate.

rotimi Lawal has over 20 years substantial audit/accounting experience gained from working in uBA branch 
audit, uBA head Office audit, Africa prudential registrars plc, united Assets management Limited, petroleum 
Trust Fund and professional audit firms.

he is the head of Settlement and Corporate Action department of uBA pensions Custodian Limited

KEHINDE OgUNTUYI ( head, safe keeping )

kehinde Oguntuyi has over fifteen (15) years of experience in the financial services industry. he is currently 
the head of the Safekeeping/vault management department at uBA pensions. he joined uBA pensions 
Contributions department as Team member, Contribution processing before he became head, Contribution 
processing department; a position he held for over five years.  prior to joining uBA pensions, kehinde worked at 
Teems Communications Ltd, Lordsfield Limited as well as Afribank plc where he began his career.

he holds a Bachelor's degree in Finance from university of ilorin, kwara State as well as an mBA from university 
of Ado Ekiti, Ekiti State. he has attended several training programmes including the Senior management program 
(Smp) at the Lagos Business School, pan African university.

LAwUYI OLADAPO ( head, resources )

dapo has 15 years’ experience in the financial services sector, which has seen him perform in Operations, retail 
marketing, human resources and Corporate Services. 

he holds an mBA (master’s in Business Administration) in human resource management and a combined hon-
ours first degree in history and Sociology both from the Obafemi Awolowo university, ile-ife, Osun State.

he started his carrier with Standard Trust Bank plc which later emerged as united Bank for Africa plc. he is 
currently head, resources of uBA pensions Custodian Limited.

NURUDEEN ADEsOKAN ( head, information technology )

Nurudeen has over 15 years’ experience in information Technology, having worked with iT Solutions Limited, 
Triumph Bank plc and uBA Assets management.

he is a graduate of Computer Science, holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and a master degree in Business 
Administration (management Technology) from Lagos State university. he is a microsoft Certified Solution 
developer (mCSd) and is also information Technology infrastructure Library (iTiL) Certified.

Nurudeen’s experience covers the following areas; Solution delivery, database management, Business Analysis, 
process Automation and improvement, Service management, project management and Business Continuity 
management.

he is Senior management programme (Smp) holder of the Lagos Business School.

Our mANAgEmENT TEAm (continued)



Seamless and efficient collection 
of pension contributions and 
schedules through all UBA Plc 

branches, timely Corporate 
Actions entitlement collection, 
prompt trades settlement and 
swift beneficiary payments on 

due date.

...efficient end to end solution

STRAIGHT 

THROUGH 

PROCESSING



20 UBA Pensions | 2018 Annual Report

corporate Information
DIRECtORs, PROFEssIONAl ADvIsERs

Directors
victor Osadolor  - Chairman

Bayo Yusuf  - managing director/CEO

Awele Elumelu  - Non-Executive director

tukur Ingawa OON  - independent Non-Executive director

Abass Mohammed Jega - independent Non-Executive director

Uche Ike  - Non-Executive director

Ayoku liadi  - Non-Executive director (resigned with effect 28 February 2018)

Patrick Omoighe  - Executive director

Secretary
Temitope hassan

Registered Offices
22B idowu Taylor Street
victoria island
Lagos

57 marina
Lagos

Abuja Liaison Office
18, Adetokunbo Ademola Crescent 
(2nd Floor)
wuse ii, Abuja

Auditors
deloitte & Touche
Civic Towers
plot gA 1, Ozumba mbadiwe Avenue,
victoria island
p.O. Box 965, marina
Lagos
Nigeria

Banker
united Bank for Africa (uBA) pLC.
marina
Lagos

Rc Number
636081

Website
www.ubapensions.com

Telephone
+(234) -1- 2718000-4

Email
ubapensions@ubagroup.com

Board Evaluation Consultant
pricewaterhouseCoopers (pwC Nigeria)
252E, muri Okunola Street,
victoria island, Lagos



21UBA Pensions | 2018 Annual Report

corporate governance Report
FOR tHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Board structure & composition
The Board of uBA pensions Custodian Limited as at december 31, 2018 was composed of seven (7) members 
as follows:

S/N MEMBERS ROLE
1 Mr. victor Osadolor Chairman
2 Mr. Bayo Yusuf MD/CEO
3 Dr. Awele Elumelu Non-Executive Director
4 Dr. tukur Ingawa OON Independent Non-Executive Director
5 Mr. Abbas Mohammed Jega Independent Non-Executive Director
6 Mr. Uche Ike Non-Executive Director
7 Mr. Patrick Omoighe Executive Director

Relationships on the Board
•	 The Chairman and the managing director 

roles are distinct and held by individual who 
do not have any family ties, thereby ensuring 
that no one individual has unfettered powers of 
decision making. 

•	 Both independent Non-Executive directors 
on the Board have not been employed by the 
Company or its associated companies, are not 
shareholders of the Company nor are accepting 
any compensation from the Company or any of 

its related companies other than compensation 
for Board services.

•	 members of the Board have diverse experience 
and there is balance of skills and knowledge.

changes in the structure & composition 
of Board 
On February 28, 2018, mr. Ayoku Liadi, (NEd) retired 
from the Board. This was duly communicated to the 
Commission. There were some changes in the com-
position of the Board Committee to effect mr. Liadi’s 
retirement, as well as for best governance practices:

NOMINATIONs cOMMITTEE  

S/N MEMBERS ROLE REMARKS
1 Dr. Awele Elumelu Chairman/NED

2 Dr. tukur Ingawa OON Independent Non-Executive 
Director

3 Mr. victor Osadolor Board Chairman

4 Mr. Uche Ike Non-Executive Director Admitted with effect from 
May 15, 2018

5 Mr. Ayoku liadi Non-Executive Director
Retired from the Board 
with effect from February 
28, 2018.
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AUDIT & RIsK MANAgEMENT cOMMITTEE   

S/N MEMBERS ROLE REMARKS
1 Dr. tukur Ingawa OON Chairman/Independent NED

2 Mr. Bayo Yusuf MD/CEO Removed with effect from 
August 3, 2018

3 Dr. Awele Elumelu Non-Executive Director Admitted with effect from 
August 3, 2018

4 Mr. Abbas Mohammed 
Jega

Independent Non-Executive 
Director

5 Mr. Uche Ike Non-Executive Director

6 Mr. Patrick Omoighe Executive Director Removed with effect from 
August 3, 2018

FINANcE & gENERAL PURPOsEs cOMMITTEE

S/N MEMBERS ROLE REMARKS
1 Mr. Uche Ike Chairman
2 Mr. Bayo Yusuf MD/CEO
3 Dr. Awele Elumelu Non-Executive Director

4 Mr. Abbas Mohammed 
Jega

Independent Non-Executive 
Director

5 Mr. Ayoku liadi Non-Executive Director
Retired from the Board 
with effect from February 
28, 2018.

6 Mr. Patrick Omoighe Executive Director

COrpOrATE gOvErNANCE rEpOrT (continued)

The Roles & Responsibilities of the Board
The Board of uBA pensions met 5 times during the 
review period. The Board provided overall guidance 
and policy direction to management in the areas 
of Strategic direction, policy formulation, decision 
making and general oversight duties. The duties of 
the Board are as follows:

•	 Setting out the vision and mission of the Company 
and ensuring that it has an appropriate strategy 
and the organisational structure and capacity to 
achieve them. 

•	 Ensuring that there is an effective management 
team in place and monitoring and evaluating its 
performance on an on-going basis. 

•	 reviewing the Company’s operations against its 
set objectives. 

•	 Ensuring adequate control and satisfactory 
financial performance of both the Company and 
the pFA Fund. 

•	 monitoring and ensuring compliance with all 
 relevant laws and regulations. 
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Board of Directors – composition, Role & Meetings Attendance 

S/N MEMBERS MARCH 1 MAY 15 AUG 3 OCT 23 DEC 21

1 Mr. victor Osadolor 
 (Chairman)

    

2 Mr. Bayo Yusuf     

3 Dr. Awele Elumelu     

4 Dr. tukur Ingawa OON     

5 Mr. Abbas Mohammed Jega     

6 Mr. Uche Ike  *   

7 Mr. Ayoku liadi * * * * *
8 Mr. Patrick Omoighe     

* There was a 100% attendance for all members and 80%attendance for Mr. Uche Ike.
* Mr. Liadi retired from the Board with effect from Feb 28, 2018

COrpOrATE gOvErNANCE rEpOrT (continued)

DELEgATION OF AUTHORITY BY THE 
BOARD TO BOARD cOMMITTEEs 
To ensure efficiency and effectiveness, the Board 
delegates some of its functions, duties and respon-
sibilities to its Board Committees without abdicating 
its oversight role. The Committees of the Board as at 
december 31, 2018 were as follows:

•	 Finance & general purposes Committee

•	 Audit & risk management Committee

•	 Nominations Committee

Below is a schedule of the Board Committees with their 
composition and a summary of their Terms of reference:

Board Finance & general Purposes 
 committee - Terms of Reference:
a. discharge the Board’s responsibilities with regard 

to strategic direction and budgeting, oversight 
on financial matters and the performance of 
the Company.

b. review Company policies of financial and 
 general nature, and make financial and invest-
ment  decisions within its approved limits on 
behalf of the Board.

c. Formulate the Strategy of the Company and make 
recommendations to the Board accordingly.

d. Consider and approve the iT governance frame-
work and extra budgetary expenditure above the 
limits of Executive management. 

•	 Ensuring that the Company has an adequate risk 
management framework and a sound system of 
internal controls in place. 

•	 undertaking a formal and rigorous evaluation of 
its own performance and those of its Committees 
and individual members, on an annual basis, 
pursuant to the requirements of the National 
pension Commission.

•	 Establishing the relevant Board Committees, 
each with written terms of reference. 

•	 Setting out a formal schedule of matters specifi-
cally reserved for its decision to ensure adequate 
oversight of the Company. 
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Finance & general Purposes committee – composition, Role & Meetings Attendance 

S/N MEMBERS FEB 28 MAY 14 AUG 2 OCT 22 DEC 20
1  Mr. Uche Ike (Chairman)  *   

2 Mr. Bayo Yusuf     

3 Dr. Awele Elumelu     

4 Mr. Abbas Mohammed 
Jega

    

5 Mr. Ayoku liadi * * * * *
6 Mr. Patrick Omoighe     

* There was a 100% attendance for all members and 80%attendance for Mr. Uche Ike.
*  Mr. Liadi retired from the Board with effect from Feb 28, 2018

COrpOrATE gOvErNANCE rEpOrT (continued)

Board Audit & Risk Management  
committee - Terms of Reference: 
a. To assist the Board of directors in fulfilling its 

oversight responsibilities in regards to audit and 
control, and ensure that an effective system of 
financial and internal control is in place.

b. To monitor and assess the overall integrity of the 
financial statements and disclosures on the finan-
cial condition and results of the Company.

c. To monitor and evaluate on a regular basis the qual-
ifications, independence and performance of the 
External Auditors and the internal Control department.

d. Safeguard the assets and income of the Company 
and monitor processes designed to ensure com-
pliance by the Company in all respect with legal 
and regulatory requirements.

e. review various risks that the Company is exposed 
to that may have a significant impact on the 
financial statements, the Company’s compliance 
policies, Audit reports including whistle Blowing 
reports and any significant reports or inqui-
ries received from management, regulators or 
government Agencies.

Audit & Risk Management committee – composition, Role & Meetings Attendance 

S/N MEMBERS FEB 28 MAY 14 AUG 2 OCT 22 DEC 
20

1  Dr. tukur Ingawa (Chairman)    * 

2 Mr. Bayo Yusuf    * *
3 Mr. Uche Ike  *   

4 Mr. Abbas Mohammed Jega     

5 Dr. Awele Elumelu * * *  

6 Mr. Patrick Omoighe    * *

* There was 80% attendance for Mr. Uche Ike & Dr. Ingawa and a 100% attendance for all other members
* Mr. Bayo Yusuf was removed with effect from Aug 3, 2018
* Mr. Patrick Omoighe was removed with effect from Aug 3, 2018
* Dr. Awele Elumelu was admitted with effect from Aug 3, 2018
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Board Nominations committee - Terms of 
Reference:
a. propose candidates to the Board for all Board 

positions (both executive and non-executives) 
and establish procedures for the nomination of 
directors; and advise and recommend to the 
Board the composition of the Board, and evalu-
ate the skills of members of the Board.

b. Advise the Board on corporate governance stan-
dards and policies and recommend the remunera-
tion of directors to the Board for approval.

COrpOrATE gOvErNANCE rEpOrT (continued)

c. review all human resources and governance 
policies for the Company, and approve recruit-
ments, promotions, redeployments and disen-
gagements for the Company for staff members 
on Senior grade levels.

d. recommend the organization structure of the 
Company to the Board for approval.

e. Organize Board and Board Committees induc-
tions and trainings and evaluate and appraise 
the performance of the Board and Board 
Committees and its members annually.

Nominations committee – composition, Role & Meetings Attendance 

S/N MEMBERS MARCH 1 MAY 15 AUG 3 OCT 22 DEC 
20

1 Dr. Awele Elumelu (Chairman)     

2 Mr. victor Osadolor     

3 Dr. tukur Ingawa OON    * 

4 Mr. Uche Ike * *   

5 Mr. Ayoku liadi * * * * *

* Mr. Liadi retired from the Board with effect from Feb 28, 2018
* There was a 100% attendance for all members and 80%attendance for Dr. Ingawa. 
* Mr. Uche Ike was admitted with effect from May 15, 2018

Material Transactions Requiring Board 
Approval
The following transactions require Board approval 
under the Company’s internal guidelines:

•	 Approving and reviewing corporate strategy

•	 Approving annual budgets and business plans

•	 Setting performance objectives

•	 Approving policies

•	 Approving major capital expenditures, acquisi-
tions and divestments

The Process of selection & Appointment 
of New Directors to the Board
The criteria for the appointment of members to 
the Board are laid down in the Board governance 
Charter and is a formal, transparent and rigorous 

process. New members are selected based on 
the National pension Commission’s Guidelines 
for Appointment to Board and Top Management 
Positions in PFAs and PFCs, GL/APPT/01 and other 
extant guidelines as well as interest and relevant skills 
and experience amongst others. 

The process of Board appointments is not con-
cluded until the nominees are duly approved by 
the National pension Commission (penCom) and 
ratified by Shareholders at the Company’s Annual 
general meeting.

Annual Board Appraisal  
pursuant to the relevant provisions of the National 
Pension Commission’s Code of Corporate 
Governance for Licensed Pension Operators and 
best practice, the Board engaged an independent 
Consultant (messrs. pricewaterhouseCoopers -pwc) 
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to conduct a formal and rigorous evaluation of its 
own performance and that of its Committees and 
individual directors.

The independent Consultant assesses the effective-
ness of the Board as a whole, and the contribution of 
each Board Committee and each individual director 
to the effectiveness of the Board.

corporate governance Practices
uBA pensions strives to improve its governance 
practices and prides itself in its openness and 
transparency. 

during the review period, the Board continued to give 
due attention to matters of corporate governance, 
corporate strategies, and the future growth and via-
bility of the Company in the very dynamic business 
environment while providing guidance and support 
to management in pursuit of its corporate objectives.

The Board met a total of five (5) times during the 
period – a meeting each in the first three  quarters, 
and two meetings in the fourth quarter. The Board 
deliberated on various matters within its mandate. 
it approved several policy documents including the 
Conflict of interest policy, and considered the issues 
arising from its regulatory routine Examination 
reports and other Compliance issues, internal 
Control, risk management, human Capital 
management, Financial performance and the 
monitoring and implementation of the Company’s 
Strategy plan amongst others.

Below are some of the governance practices  instituted 
in the Company:

•	 The md/CEO and Executive director are not 
members of the Board Committees respon-
sible for remuneration, audit, nominations or 
governance.

•	 No director currently provides professional 
 services to the Company. 

•	 The Board exercises responsibility, leadership, 
enterprise, integrity and judgment in directing the 
organisation so as to achieve its objective.

COrpOrATE gOvErNANCE rEpOrT (continued)

•	 The Board acts in the best interest of its 
 shareholders and other stakeholders on the basis 
of transparency, accountability and equity. 

•	 All directors participate in periodic, relevant, 
continuing education program to update their 
knowledge and skills and keep them informed 
of new developments in the Company’s business 
and operating environment.

•	 The meetings of the Board, Board Committees 
and the Shareholders meetings are scheduled 
one year in advance. Board papers are sent 
to directors one week before the  meeting, 
the agenda is clear and matters are dealt 
with expeditiously.

•	 The Company has various management 
Committees to assist management in the day-to-
day running of the Company namely the Executive 
management, iT Steering, Change management 
Committee, and Operations & Customer Service 
Committees. Ad-hoc Committees are constituted 
from time to time to deal with specific matters.

•	 The Company has a whistle-blowing Facility and 
a Compliance Communication program which 
have the assurance of confidentiality and is further 
monitored by the National pensions Commission.

•	 directors have access to management through 
the Company Secretariat and have the liberty to 
engage independent Consultants at the expense 
of the Company if required.

•	 The independent directors represent strong 
independent voices on the Board and are free 
from relationships and circumstances with 
the Company, management, or substantial 
Shareholders. 

•	 New members to the Board are formally inducted 
to familiarize them with the Company’s Strategic 
plan, operations, business environment, fiduciary 
responsibilities, and senior management.

The Adequacy of Internal control
The Audit & risk management Committee is vested 
with the responsibility of overseeing the effectiveness 
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and adequacy of internal control systems. it is also 
responsible for ensuring the adequacy and effec-
tiveness of risk management. quarterly internal 
Control reports which includes financial perfor-
mance,  operational and compliance controls and 
risk management are presented to the Audit & risk 
management Committee by the head of internal 
Control and significant items are highlighted to the 
Board for notification, approval or resolution. 

COrpOrATE gOvErNANCE rEpOrT (continued)

Remuneration of Directors
The Company ensures that remuneration paid 
to its directors complies with the provisions of 
National pension Commission’s Code of Corporate 
governance for Licensed pension Operators.

in compliance with Section 5.3.1 of the Code, the 
Company makes disclosures of remuneration paid 
to its directors as follows:

Package Type Description Timing

Basic salary Fixed this is part of gross salary package 
for Executive Directors only.
It reflects the pension industry 
 competitive salary package and 
the  extent to which the Company’s 
objectives have been met for the 
financial year.

Paid monthly during
the financial year

13th month salary Fixed this is part of gross salary package 
for Executive Directors only.
It reflects the pension industry 
 competitive salary package and 
the  extent to which the Company’s 
objectives have been met for the 
financial year.

Paid in a month during 
the financial year

Directors fees Fixed this is paid bi-annually to Non-exec-
utive Directors only.

Paid Bi-annually

sitting allowances Fixed sitting allowances are paid to the 
Non-Executive Directors only
for attending Board and Board 
 Committee meetings

Paid after each
meeting
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COrpOrATE gOvErNANCE rEpOrT (continued)

cONcLUsION 
uBA pensions Custodian Limited is headed by an 
effective Board which is responsible for providing 
entrepreneurial and strategic leadership as well 
as promoting ethical culture and responsible cor-
porate citizenship. The Board of uBA pensions as 
a stakeholder in the pension industry ensures best 
 governance practice and thereby carries out its 
responsibility for the sustenance of the industry.

during the reporting period, Board members 
attended some impactful trainings in the area of 
Strategic innovation & Business development, 
micro-pensions implementation, and participated 
in the 6th annual Conference for directors of 
Licensed pension Fund Operators. in addition, the 
independent directors attended an independent 
directors master Class. The entire Board as a whole 
devoted considerable time to the implementation of 
its strategic objectives, and is confident of better all-
round performance having laid a strong foundation 
for its proposed strategic initiatives for the 2019Fy. 

The Board is committed to partnering with the 
National pension Commission to ensure the achieve-
ment of the laudable goals of the Pension Reform 
Act, 2014.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

TEMITOPE HASSAN,  
FRC/2017/NBA/00000016669
COMPANY sECREtARY/lEGAl ADvIsER

lagos, Nigeria 
March 2019
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in compliance with the Companies & Allied Matters 
Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 
2004, the directors of uBA pensions Custodian 
Limited are pleased to present to Shareholders the 
audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31 december 2018.

cORPORATE sTRUcTURE AND BUsINEss
uBA pensions Custodian Limited (uBA pensions) 
is a private company and was incorporated in 
September 2005 in line with the Pension Reform Act 
2004 (as amended 2014), and is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of uBA plc.

Report Of The Directors

The Company is licensed to carry on the business 
of custody of pension fund and assets and to hold 
and deal with such fund and assets to the exclusive 
order of the pension Fund Administration(s) for the 
benefit of the account holders in the pension Fund 
Administrator(s), in accordance with the directive 
given by the National pension Commission and in 
conformity with the Pension Reform Act 2014.

The Company’s registered address is 22B, idowu 
Taylor Street, victoria island, Lagos. it has arms-
length dealings with pensions Funds Administrators 
and other stakeholders in the pensions industry with 
formal and transparent procedures and processes.

OPERATINg REsULTs 
  31 December 
  2018  2017 
  ₦’000  ₦’000 

Gross Earnings 6,689,941 6,532,613
Personnel expenses (614,127) (710,582)
Impairment loss allowance (ECl) (24,549) -
Other operating expenses (737,870) (1,028,624)
Profit before taxation  5,313,395 4,793,407
Income tax Expense (1,383,944) (1,161,711)
Profit for the year after taxation 3,929,451 3,631,696
Profit attributable to shareholders 3,929,451 3,631,696
Basic earnings per share (kobo) 196 182
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ANALYsIs OF sHAREHOLDINg
The Share capital is ₦2,000,000,000 divided into 
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of ₦1.00 each.

The Company had two shareholders, namely 
united Bank for Africa plc with 99% and Bili Odum, 
with 1% of the total paid-up Capital. The authorized 

and paid-up Capital of the Company remained at 
₦2 Billion.

DIREcTORs
The following were directors of the Company who 
served during the period under review:

BOARD MEMBERs

S/N DIRECTOR ROLE
1 Mr. victor Osadolor Chairman
2 Mr. Bayo Yusuf MD/CEO
3 Dr. Awele Elumelu Non-Executive Director
4 Dr. tukur Ingawa OON Independent Non-Executive Director
5 Mr. Abbas Mohammed Jega Independent Non-Executive Director
6 Mr. Uche Ike Non-Executive Director
7 Mr. Ayoku liadi* Non-Executive Director
8 Mr. Patrick Omoighe Executive Director

* Retired with effect from February 28, 2018

INTERIM DIVIDEND
during the period, the directors approved an interim 
dividend of 167kobo per ordinary Share of ₦1:00 
each to be paid to Shareholders. The interim dividend 
was subsequently approved by the National pension 
Commission and would be ratified by  members at 
the Annual general meeting.

FIXED AssETs
details of changes in fixed assets during the year are 
shown in the note to the financial statements on page 
66. in the opinion of directors, the market value of 
the Company’s properties is not less than the value 
shown in the financial statements. 

sTATEMENT OF DIREcTORs’ REsPONsI-
BILITIEs FOR FINANcIAL sTATEMENTs
in compliance with the provisions of Sections 334 
and 335 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 
CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 the 
directors are responsible for the preparation of the 

financial statements which give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company and the profit 
or loss for that year. in so doing they ensure that:

i. Adequate internal control procedures are insti-
tuted to safeguard the assets, prevent and detect 
frauds and other irregularities;

ii. proper accounting records are maintained;

iii. Applicable accounting standards are adhered to;

iv. Suitable accounting policies are adopted and 
consistently applied;

v. Judgments and estimates made are reasonable 
and prudent and; and

vi. The financial statements are prepared on the 
going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 
to presume that the Company will continue 
in business.

rEpOrT OF ThE dirECTOrS (continued)
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DIREcTORs’ INTEREsTs
The directors are not Shareholders of the Company.

EMPLOYMENT & EMPLOYEEs
uBA pensions Custodian Limited  had a total of 
80 staff as at 31 december, 2018 comprising of 2 
Executive management, 8 Senior management staff, 
15 Supervisors and 55 professionals. 

innovation, teamwork and cordial relations is encour-
aged amongst employees. recruitment is fair and 
transparent and the terms of employee employment 
are equitable. The work environment is free from 
harassment, and the working condition is conducive.  
Furthermore, the Company maintains a safe work-
place by adhering to fundamental health and safety 
standards and regulations. Staff members are regu-
larly educated on workplace health and safety and 
the requirement to report all accidents appropriately.

The Company provides a health insurance scheme 
for staff members and their immediate families and 
encourages a good work-life balance and paid 
annual leave and medical checks.

The Company is an equal opportunity employer, 
it provides equal opportunities for disabled per-
sons, ensuring that there is no discrimination 
against them. Currently, there are no disabled 
employees in the Company. during the year ended 
december 31, 2018, no employee was disabled in 
the course of employment.

sTAFF TRAININg 
uBA pensions Custodian Limited believes in con-
tinuing educational development and professional 

rEpOrT OF ThE dirECTOrS (continued)

training. Staff members are trained to equip them 
with important skills to boost their productivity and 
develop them professionally. This is achieved through 
structured and comprehensive training  programmes 
adapted to each employee’s job function and role. All 
staff members were trained during the review period.

cORPORATE sOcIAL REsPONsIBILITY [csR]
uBA pensions Custodian Limited is committed, to 
the promotion of socio-economic development of 
the country, especially in the area of education and 
development of the awareness of pensions. its policy 
excludes participation in political activities, individual 
and staff projects, religious activities, violent sports 
as well as items that are contrary to good conscience 
and public opinion.

POsT BALANcE sHEET EVENTs
There are no post Balance Sheet events that could 
have effect on the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31 december, 2018 which have not been ade-
quately provided for or disclosed.

AUDIT cOMMITTEE
The Company has in place a Board Audit & risk 
management Committee pursuant to its Board 
governance Charter. The Committee’s main Terms 
of reference is to assist the Board of directors in ful-
filling its oversight responsibilities in regard to audit 
and control and to monitor and assess the overall 
integrity of the financial statements and disclosures 
of the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company. Below is the Composition of 
the Committee:

Board Audit & Risk Management  committee 

S/N NAME ROLE
1 Dr. tukur Ingawa (OON) Chairman
2 Mr. Abbas Mohammed Jega Member, NED
3 Mr. Uche Ike Member, NED
4 Dr. Awele Elumelu Member, NED
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AUDITORs
The Auditors, messrs. deloitte & Touche, having 
indicated their willingness to continue in office, will 
do so in accordance with Section 357 (2) of the 
Companies & Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of 
the Federation of Nigeria 2004.

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual general 
meeting to authorise the directors to determine their 
remuneration.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

TEMITOPE HASSAN,  
FRC/2017/NBA/00000016669
COMPANY sECREtARY/lEGAl ADvIsER

lagos, Nigeria 
13 March 2019

rEpOrT OF ThE dirECTOrS (continued)
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The directors of uBA pensions Custodian Limited 
are responsible for the preparation of the finan-
cial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position of the Company as at 
31 december 2018, and the results of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended, 
in compliance with international Financial reporting 
Standards (“iFrS”) and in the manner required by 
the Companies and Allied matters Act of Nigeria, 
the pension reform Act 2014 as amended, National 
pension Commission guidelines, and the Financial 
reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

in preparing the financial statements, the directors 
are responsible for:

•	 properly selecting and applying accounting 
policies;

•	 presenting information, including accounting pol-
icies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, 
comparable and understandable information;

•	 providing additional disclosures when compli-
ance with the specific requirements in iFrSs are 
insufficient to enable users to understand the 
impact of particular transactions, other events 
and conditions on the Company’s financial posi-
tion and financial performance; and

•	 making an assessment of the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for:

•	 designing, implementing and maintaining an 
effective and sound system of internal controls 
throughout the Company;

•	 maintaining adequate accounting records that 
are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accu-
racy at any time the financial position of the 
Company, and which enable them to ensure that 

statement Of Directors’ Responsibilities
FOR tHE PREPARAtION AND APPROvAl OF tHE FINANCIAl stAtEMENts

the financial statements of the Company comply 
with iFrS;

•	 maintaining statutory accounting records in 
 compliance with the legislation of Nigeria 
and iFrS;

•	 taking such steps as are reasonably available to 
them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and

•	 preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.

going concern:
The directors have made an assessment of the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern 
and have no reason to believe the Company will not 
remain a going concern in the year ahead.

The financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31 december 2018 were approved by the 
board on 13 march, 2019.

On behalf of the Directors of the company.

VICTOR OSADOLOR 
FRC/2016/ICAN/00000013923
Chairman

BAYO YUSUF  
FRC/2015/CIIN/000000108
Managing Director
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in accordance with the provisions of Sections 359(3)(4) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, we have received the independent Auditors report for the year ended 
december 31, 2018 and hereby state as follows:

The committee Resolved as Follows:
a. in our opinion the scope and planning of the audit were adequate. 

b. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conformed to statutory requirements and agreed 
ethical practices. 

c. The Company’s system of accounting and internal control was constantly and effectively monitored; and 

d. The external Auditors management report received satisfactory response from management. 

Dr. Tukur Ingawa 
FRC/2018/IODN/00000018294
Chairman Audit & Risk Management committee
lagos, Nigeria
March 13, 2019

Audit & Risk Management committee 

S/N Composition
1 Dr. tukur Ingawa – Chairman
2 Mr. Abbas  Mohammed – Member
3 Mr. Uche Ike – Member
4 Dr. Awele Elumelu – Member

Report Of The Audit & Risk Management committee
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Business continuity Risks Management 

Business Continuity planning (BCp) in uBA pensions 
Custodian is governed by a robust Continuity of 
Business (CoB) policy.  This provides a framework for 
crisis management and orderly restoration of busi-
ness activities in the event of any disaster (natural, 
man-made  or any technological failures) affecting 
the Company. 

The objectives of a policy guided Continuity of 
Business planning include:

1. Ensures business continuity in a cost effective 
manner.

2. provides safety for staff.

3. provides methodology for analysing business 
impacts of adverse events.

4. provides platform to ensure compliance with 
regulations.

The company’s continuity of Business 
(coB) standards 
1. The Continuity of Business plans are in 

compliance with extant rules and regulations.

2. The Continuity of Business plans are approved 
by the Board of directors of the Company.

3. The Business recovery plans are tested 
periodically in line with frequencies set out in 
the policy.

4. All/any issues arisen from the Business recovery 
Tests are documented, tracked and resolved.

5. The Continuity of Business plans are designed 
to minimize the effects of business disruptions, 
ensure the continuity of service  and maintain 
service resilience and viability before, during 
and after any adverse event.

6. There is on-going staff awareness program on 
Continuity of Business management.

7. There is on-going monitoring and reporting 
of the implementation of the Continuity of 
Business plans.

The continuity of Business Risk  
Assessment 
By the Continuity of Business risk Assessment (CrA), 
the threats the Company’s business processes and 
facilities are exposed to and the impact of such 
threats if they crystallize are identified. This also 
involves the identification of measures or controls 
to prevent the occurrence of those threats or the 
 mitigants to address such threats in order to reduce 
the impact of losses, if they occur.

crisis Events, Impacts Levels  
and Management.
The policy identifies various crisis events and impact 
levels , which assist in defining the severity of a crisis 
event and the appropriate Crisis management Team 
or Teams to support mitigation:

Level IV
(Low impact) is an occurrence that requires local 
response. The local Crisis management Team of the 
Company manages such  occurrences or events. 

Level III
(medium impact) is an occurrence that requires 
involvement and response from the CoB Entity Crisis 
management Team. This Crisis management Team 
can be activated to manage and monitor situations 
at the CoB Entity level and may choose to escalate to 
Level ii where resources necessary to tackle the crisis 
are not available at Level iii.

Level II
(high impact) is an occurrence that requires involve-
ment and response of the Strategic Support group, 
because the CoB Entity requires additional resources. 
The Strategic Support group manages the event, 
The Ed, OpS & iT chairs this Team.
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Level I
(Critical impact) is an occurrence that has the poten-
tial of negatively affecting the Company as a going 

concern. The md/CEO chairs this Team.

The Planning Assumptions:
 in developing a Business recovery plan, assump-
tions are made: one is the worst-Case Scenario 
Assumption, and the other is the possibility of 
dependencies on processes that are either internal 
to the Company or are provided by vendors,  suppli-
ers or other third parties.

The Disaster Recovery Testing
The Company conducts the disaster recovery Tests 
periodically at frequencies spelt out in the policy, 
to  confirm that the plans are functional and that 
required resources( staff, equipment and system) are 
in place. The tests are in four categories: 

1. table top
This is a review of Business recovery plan 
documentation.

2. stand Alone:
This is a test of a single plan component, which is a 
part of the Business recovery plan that can be tested 
in isolation. The Call Tree Test is in this category. 

3. Component
This is test of multiple dependent plan components 
which together make a full Operational Test. An 
example is the Technology recovery Test.

4. Operational

This is a complete test of the Business recovery plan.

At a minimum, the testing objectives are to ensure 
that the plans are functional and that the Tests do not 
jeopardize normal business operations.

The attention to Business Continuity risks 
management is a further demonstration of  the 
Company’s commitment to managing risk as an 
integral component of its operations in order to max-
imize opportunities and minimize impediments to its 
mission, vision, strategies, goals and objectives. 

BuSiNESS CONTiNuiTy riSkS rEpOrT (continued)
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Chartered Accountants 
Landmark Towers, 5B Water Corporation Road, Victoria Island, Lagos, Nigeria 
T: +234 1 271 1700, www.pwc.com/ng                   TIN: 01556757-0001 
 
Partners: S Abu, O Adeola, W Adetokunbo-Ajayi, UN Akpata, O Alakhume, C Azobu, E Erhie, D McGraw, U Muogilim, P Obianwa, T Ogundipe, C Ojechi, O Oladipo,  

P Omontuemhen, O Osinubi, T Oyedele, AB Rahji, O Ubah 
 

14 March 2019 

The Chairman 
UBA Pensions Custodian Limited 
3rd Floor,  
22B Idowu Taylor Street 
Victoria Island  
Lagos 
 
Dear Sir, 

Report to the Directors of UBA Pensions Custodian Limited on the outcome of the 2018 
Board Evaluation 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) was engaged to carry out an evaluation of the Board of Directors of 
UBA Pensions Custodian Limited. (“UPCL” or “The Company”) as required by Section 4.5.1 of Pension 
Commission (PENCOM) Code of Corporate Governance for Licensed Pension Operators (“the Code “or 
“PENCOM Code”). The evaluation covers the Board’s structure, composition, responsibilities, 
processes, relationships and performance of the Committees for the period ended 31 December 2018. 
 
The Board is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the information relevant to its 
performance. Our responsibility is to reach a conclusion on the Board’s performance based on work 
carried out within the scope of our engagement as contained in our Letter of Engagement dated 28 
January 2019. In carrying out the evaluation, we have relied on representations made by members of 
the Board and Management and on the documents provided for our review. 
 
The Board has complied significantly with the provisions of the PENCOM Code. Areas of compliance 
include the Board’s oversight of the Company’s financial performance, strategy implementation, risk 
management, compliance and internal control systems.  
 
We also facilitated a Self and Peer assessment of each Director’s performance in the year under review. 
This assessment covered the perceived competence, level of attendance at Board and Board Committee 
meetings, contribution and participation at these meetings and relationships with each other. Each 
individual Director’s Assessment report was prepared and made available to them respectively while a 
consolidated report of the performance of all Directors has been submitted to the Board Chairman. 
 
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For: PricewaterhouseCoopers Chartered Accountants 
 

 

 
Femi Osinubi 
FRC/2017/ICAN/00000016659 
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Independent Auditor’s Report
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UBA PENSIONS CUSTODIAN LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial  
statements

Opinion
we have audited the financial statements of 
UBA Pensions Custodian Limited which 
 comprise the statement of financial position as at 
31 december 2018, and the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended and the notes to the finan-
cial statements, including a summary of significant 
 accounting policies.

in our opinion, the accompanying financial state-
ments give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of UBA Pensions Custodian Limited 
as at 31 december 2018, and the financial perfor-
mance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with international Financial reporting 
Standards (iFrS), the Companies and Allied matters 
Act CAp C20 LFN 2004, the Financial reporting 
Council of Nigeria Act 2011, pension reform Act 
2014 and pencom guidelines.

Basis for Opinion
we conducted our audit in accordance with 
international Standards on Auditing (iSAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. we are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the requirements of the institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Nigeria professional Code 
of Conduct and guide for Accountants (iCAN Code) 
and other independence requirements applicable to 
performing audits of financial statements in Nigeria. 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the iCAN Code and in accordance 
with other ethical requirements applicable to per-
forming audits in Nigeria. The iCAN Code is con-
sistent with the international Ethics Standards Board 

for Accountants Code of Ethics for professional 
Accountants (parts A and B). we believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current 
year. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. There 
were no key audit matters identified with respect to 
the company.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other informa-
tion. The other information comprises the directors’ 
report and Audit Committee’s reports as required 
by Companies and Allied matters Act CAp C20 
LFN 2004, which we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report. The other information does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements do not cover 
the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other  information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

Based on the work we have performed on the other 
information that we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report, if we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. we have nothing to 
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors on the Finan-
cial statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with international Financial reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies 
and Allied matters Act CAp C20 LFN 2004, Financial 
reporting Council Act, 2011, pension reforms Act 
2014 and pencom guidelines and for such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. in preparing the financial state-
ments, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going con-
cern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to 
 liquidate the company or to cease operations, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Entity’s Financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with iSAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggre-
gate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with iSAs, we exer-
cise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. we also:

•	 identify and assess the risks of material mis-
statement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control rel-
evant to the audit in order to design audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of account-
ing policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists relating to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. if we conclude that a  material uncer-
tainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our  opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our  auditor’s report. 
however, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the company’s 
financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

we communicate with the audit committee and 
the directors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identified during our audit.

iNdEpENdENT AudiTOr’S rEpOrT (continued)
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
in accordance with the Sixth Schedule of Companies 
and Allied matters Act CAp C20 LFC 2004 we 
expressly state that:

i. we have obtained all the information and expla-
nation which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

ii. The Company has kept proper books of account, 
so far as appears from our examination of those 
books.

iii. The Company’s financial position and its state-
ment of profit or loss and other comprehen-
sive income are in agreement with the books 
of account.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the 
independent auditor’s report is yetunde Odetayo, FCA.

For: Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants
lagos, Nigeria
29 March, 2019

Engagement Partner:
Joshua Ojo, FCA 
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000849

iNdEpENdENT AudiTOr’S rEpOrT (continued)
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31 December
2018 2017

Note ₦’000 ₦’000
Custody fee 9  5,466,506  5,034,542 
Interest income 10 1,219,634 1,294,748 
Other income 12  3,801  203,323 
Total income 6,689,941 6,532,613
Personnel expenses 12  (614,127)  (710,582)
Impairment loss allowance (ECl) 14  (24,549)  -   
Other operating expenses 13  (737,870)  (1,028,624)
Total expenses  1,376,546  1,739,206 
Profit before taxation  5,313,395 4,793,407
Income tax expense 15 (1,383,944) (1,161,711)
Profit  after taxation  3,929,451  3,631,696 
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,929,451 3,631,696
Basic earnings per share (kobo) 196 182

The accompanying notes on pages 45 to 79 are an integral part of these financial statements

statement Of comprehensive Income
FOR tHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2018
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statement Of Financial Position
As At 31 DECEMBER 2018

31 December
2018 2017

Note ₦’000 ₦’000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 16  469,560  92,672 
Investment securities 17  8,818,064  8,420,758 
Other assets 19  1,330,319  1,303,314 
Deferred tax assets 18  75,550  81,112 

10,693,493 9,897,856
Non-Current Assets
Property and equipment 20  204,260  62,557 
Intangible asset 21  40,822  77,157 

 245,082  139,714 
Total assets 10,938,575 10,037,570
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY 
share capital 26  2,000,000  2,000,000 
Retained earnings 27  3,087,697  2,505,566 
Total equity 5,087,697 4,505,566
Current Liabilities
trade and other payables 22  1,130,025  1,124,465 
Dividend payable 23  3,340,000  3,200,000 
Current tax liabilities 24  1,359,840  1,195,191 

 5,829,865  5,519,656 
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 18  21,013 12,348
Total equity and liabilities 10,938,575 10,037,570

Pension assets under custody 34 2,058,014,024 1,800,248,204

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2019 and signed 
on its behalf by:

VIcTOR OsADOLOR BAYO YUsUF RAsHIDAH ADEKOLA
Chairman MD/CEO Chief Finance Officer
FRC/2016/ICAN/00000013923 FRC/2015/CIIN/00000010809 FRC/2012/ICAN/00000000269
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statement Of changes In Equity
FOR tHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Share Capital Retained earnings Total
31 December 2018 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000
At 1 January 2018 2,000,000 2,505,566 4,505,566
Impact of initial application of IFRs 9 
(note 14) - (7,320) (7,320)

Restated Balance as at January 1 2018 2,000,000 2,498,246 4,490,246
total comprehensive income for the year - 3,929,451 3,929,451
Dividend declared - (3,340,000) (3,340,000)
At 31 December 2018 2,000,000 3,087,697 5,087,697

31 December 2017
At 1 January 2017 2,000,000 2,073,870 4,073,870
Dividend declared - (3,200,000) (3,200,000)
total comprehensive income for the year - 3,631,696 3,631,696
At 31 December 2017 2,000,000 2,505,566 4,505,566
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31 December
2018 2017

Note ₦’000 ₦’000
Profit for the year 3,929,451 3,631,696
Income tax charge 15 1,383,944 1,161,711

5,313,395 4,793,407
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Disposal of property and equipment - (1,157)
Depreciation and amortization 20&21 94,603 54,951
Impairment losses on financial assets 14 24,549 -
Operating profit before changes in operating assets 5,432,547 4,847,201
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Debtors and prepayments (27,763) (327,369)
Creditors and accruals 5,560 730,025
Cash generated from operations 5,410,344 5,249,857
Income taxes paid 24 (1,205,068) (1,027,295)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,205,276 4,222,562

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of investment securities (427,549) (1,678,963)
Proceed from disposal of property and equipment 20 - 1,158
Purchase of intangible assets and property and  
equipment 20&21 (199,971) (53,016)
Net cash used in investing activities (627,520) (1,730,821)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid 24 (3,200,000) (2,400,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,200,000) (2,400,000)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 377,756 91,741
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 92,672 931
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 16 470,428 92,672

statement Of cash Flows
FOR tHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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Notes To The Financial statements

1 corporate information

i legal Form
The Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of 
united Bank for Africa plc was incorporated on 30 
September 2005. it obtained an operating license 
on 7 december 2005 and commenced operations 
on 16 February 2006.

ii Principal Activities
The company’s principal activities include the provi-
sion of custodian services for pension assets and the 
holding and dealing in such assets in accordance 
with the directives of the pension Fund Administrators 
and the National pension Commission. The company 
has its registered office at 57 marina, Lagos and its 
operating office at 22B, idowu Taylor Street, victoria 
island, Lagos.

2 Basis of preparation
i The financial statements have been prepared 
on a historical basis except for financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value.

ii Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Nigerian 
Naira, which is the functional currency. Except oth-
erwise indicated, financial information presented in 
Naira have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

iii statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with international Financial reporting 
Standards (iFrS) issued by the international 
Accounting Standards Board and adopted by the 
Financial reporting Council of Nigeria for the finan-
cial year starting 1 January, 2014.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by 
the directors on 13 march 2019.

iv Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the application of policies 
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
incomes and expenses. The estimates and associ-
ated assumptions are based on historical experi-
ence and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results 
of which form the basis of making the judgements 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an on-going basis. revisions to account-
ing estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future 
periods, if the revision affects both current and future 
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application 
of iFrSs that have significant effect on the  financial 
statements and estimates with a significant risk of 
material adjustment are disclosed in note 29.

3 significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been 
consistently applied to all periods presented in these 
financial statements.

(a)  Interest
interest income for all interest bearing financial 
instruments, except for those classified at fair value 
through profit or loss, are recognised within ‘interest 
income’ in the income statement using the effective 
interest method. The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
payments and receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, 
a shorter period) to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset or liability.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes 
all transaction costs and fees paid or received that 
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 
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Transaction costs include incremental costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a 
financial asset or liability.

(b) Custody fee
Custody Fees include fee charge on asset under cus-
tody. These are recognised monthly on accrual basis.

(c) Income tax 
income tax expense comprises current and deferred 
tax. income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss.

i. Current tax.
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and 
prior years are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authori-
ties. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date.

ii. Deferred tax
deferred tax is provided on temporary differences 
at the reporting date between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes. deferred tax liabilities 
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, 
except:

•	 where the deferred tax liability arises from the 
initial recognition of Classic will or of an asset 
or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 
profit or loss

•	 in respect of taxable temporary differences asso-
ciated with investments in subsidiaries, where the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary differ-
ences can be controlled and it is probable that 
the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future

deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilised except:

•	 where the deferred tax asset relating to the 
deductible temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in 
a transaction that is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

•	 in respect of deductible temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the 
extent that it is probable that the temporary 
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future 
and taxable profit will be available against which 
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. unrecognised deferred tax 
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. deferred tax assets and liabil-
ities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 
to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items rec-
ognised directly in equity are also recognised in 
equity and not in the income statement.

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins 
in hand, and highly liquid financial assets with orig-
inal maturities of less than three months, which are 
subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair 
value, and are used by the Company in the manage-
ment of its short-term commitments.
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(e) Property and equipment
i Recognition and measurement
items of property and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and impair-
ment losses. The cost of other items of property and 
equipment as was determined at their depreciated 
amounts under previous gAAp. when parts of an 
item of property or equipment have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property and equipment. purchased 
software that is integral to the functionality of the 
related equipment is capitalised as part of that 
equipment.

ii subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property or 
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of 
the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment 
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

iii Depreciation
depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
each part of an item of property and equipment since 
this most closely reflects the expected pattern of con-
sumption of the future economic benefits embodied 
in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over 
the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. 
depreciation begins when an asset is available for 
use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the 
asset is derecognised or classified as held for sale in 
accordance with iFrS 5 Non-current Assets Held for 
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The estimated useful lives for the current and com-
parative period are as follows:

Computer hardware 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

Office equipments 5 years

leasehold Improvements 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

safe & vaults 20 years

depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reassessed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate.

(f) Intangible assets

Software
Software acquired by the Company is stated at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is cap-
italised only when it increases the future economic 
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it 
relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 5 
years, from the date that it is available for use. The 
amortisation method and useful life of software are 
reassessed at each financial year end and adjusted 
if appropriate.

(g) Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past 
event, the Company has a present legal or construc-
tive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it 
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation. provisions are 
determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when 
the expected benefits to be derived by the Company 
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost 
of meeting its obligations under the contract. The 
provision is measured at the present value of the 
lower of the expected cost of terminating the con-
tract and the expected net cost of continuing with 
the contract. Before a provision is established, the 
Company recognises any impairment loss on the 
assets associated with that contract.

(h) Contributory Pensions Scheme
The company operates contributory pension plan, 
which is funded by contributions from the company 
and employees. Funding under the scheme is 8% 
by staff and 10% by the company based on annual 
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basic salary, housing and transport allowances in 
line with the pension reform Act 2014.

Under contributory pensions plans:
The company’s legal or constructive obligation is lim-
ited to the amount it contributes to the fund. Thus, the 
amount of the post-employment benefits received by 
the employee is determined by the amount of contri-
butions made by the group to the plan, together with 
investment returns arising from the contributions.

in consequence, actuarial risk (that benefits will be 
less than expected) and investment risk (that assets 
invested will be insufficient to meet expected bene-
fits) fall on the employee.

(i) Share capital and reserves
 Dividend on ordinary shares
dividend on the Company’s ordinary shares are 
recognised in equity in the period in which they 
are paid or, if earlier, approved by the Company’s 
shareholders.

(j) Earnings per share
The company presents basic earnings per share (EpS) 
data for its ordinary shares. Basic EpS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted aver-
age number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.

4 Fiduciary assets
The company provides trust and other fiduciary ser-
vices that result in the holding or investing of assets 
on behalf of its clients. Assets held in a fiduciary 
capacity are not reported in the financial statements, 
as they are not the assets of the company.

5 Dividends on ordinary shares
dividend on ordinary shares are recognised as a 
liability and deducted from equity when they are 
approved by the company’s shareholders. interim 
dividends are deducted from equity when they 
are declared and no longer at the discretion of 
the company.

dividends for the year that are approved after the 
reporting date are disclosed as an event after the 
reporting date.

6 New and revised IFRss/IFRIcs 
affecting amounts reported and/
or disclosures in these financial 
statements

in the current year, the Company has applied a 
number of amendments to iFrSs issued by the 
international Accounting Standards Board (iASB) 
that are mandatorily effective for an accounting 
period that begins on or after 1 January 2018.

i IFRs 9 Financial Instruments 
in July 2014, the iASB issued the final version of iFrS 9 
Financial instruments that replaces iAS39 Financial 
instruments: recognition and measurement and all 
previous versions of iFrS 9. iFrS 9 brings together 
all three aspects of the accounting for the financial 
instruments project: classification and measure-
ment; impairment; and hedge accounting. iFrS 9 is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2018, with early application permitted. 
Except for hedge accounting, retrospective applica-
tion is required, but providing comparative informa-
tion is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the 
requirements are generally applied prospectively, 
with some limited exceptions.

Classification and measurement
iFrS 9 replaces the multiple classification and mea-
surement models in iAS 39 with a single model that 
has only three classification categories: amortised 
cost, fair value through OCi and fair value through 
profit or loss. it includes the guidance on account-
ing for and presentation of financial liabilities and 
derecognition of financial instruments which was 
previously in iAS 39. Furthermore, for non-derivative 
financial liabilities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss, it requires that the credit risk compo-
nent of fair value gains and losses be separated and 
included in OCi rather than in the income statement.
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Impairment
iFrS 9 also requires that credit losses expected at the 
balance sheet date (rather than only losses incurred 
in the year) on investment securities, cash equivalents 
and other receivables not held at fair value through 
profit or loss be reflected in impairment allowances.

ii IFRs 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers: 

in may 2014, the iASB issued iFrS 15 revenue from 
Contracts with Customers, effective for periods 
beginning on 1 January 2018 with early adoption 
permitted. iFrS 15 defines principles for recognising 
revenue and will be applicable to all contracts with 
customers. however, interest and fee income integral 
to financial instruments and leases will continue to fall 
outside the scope of iFrS 15 and will be regulated by 
the other applicable standards (e.g., iFrS 9, and iFrS 
16 Leases). revenue under iFrS 15 will need to be 
recognised as goods and services are transferred, to 
the extent that the transferor anticipates entitlement 
to goods and services. The standard also specifies 
a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements 
regarding the nature, extent and timing as well as 
any uncertainty of revenue and the corresponding 
cash flows with customers. 

iii Amendments to IAs 12 - Income taxes: 
The iASB issued the amendments to iAS 12 income 
Taxes to clarify the accounting for deferred tax 
assets for unrealised losses on debt instruments 
measured at fair value. The amendments clarify that 
an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts 
the sources of taxable profits against which it may 
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible 
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments 
provide guidance on how an entity should determine 
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances 
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of 
some assets for more than their carrying amount. 
The amendments are intended to remove existing 
divergence in practice in recognising deferred tax 
assets for unrealised losses. The amendment does 
not impact the Company.

iv Amendments to IAs 7 - statement of 
Cash Flows:

The amendments to iAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 
are part of the iASB’s disclosure initiative and help 
users of financial statements better understand 
changes in an entity’s debt. The amendments require 
entities to provide disclosures about changes in their 
liabilities arising from financing activities, including 
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash 
changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). 
The amendments are intended to provide informa-
tion to help investors better understand changes in 
an entity’s debt. The amendment results in addi-
tional disclosures being made by the Company in its 
 financial statements.

(a) New and amended standards and 
interpretations not yet adopted by the 
Company

A number of new standards, interpretations and 
amendments are effective for annual period begin-
ning after 1 January 2018 and earlier application 
is permitted; however, the Company has not early 
adopted the following new or amended standards in 
preparing these financial statements:

IFRS 16 Leases
iFrS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, includ-
ing iAS 17 Leases, iFriC 4 determining whether an 
arrangement contains a lease, SiC -15 Operating 
leases- incentives and SiC -27 Evaluating the substance 
of Transactions involving the legal form of a lease.

The standard is effective for annual periods begin-
ning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is 
permitted for entities that apply iFrS 15 at or before 
the date of initial application of iFrS 16.

iFrS 16 introduces a single, on balance sheet 
accounting model for leases. A leasee recognises 
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the 
underlying asset and a lease liability representing 
its obligation to make lease payments. There are 
 recognition exemptions for short term leases and 
leases of low value items. Lessor accounting remains 
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similar to the current standard, i.e, lessors continue 
to classify leases as finance or operating leases. 

The Company has completed an initial assessment 
of the potential impact on its financial statements 
but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. 
The actual impact of applying iFrS 16 on the 

financial statements in the period of initial applica-
tion will depend on future economic conditions. 

No significant impact is expected for the Company’s 
finance leases as the Company has a few offices 
under operating leases.

NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)

New or  amended 
standards and 
 effective date

summary of the requirements Possible impact on 
 fi nancial statements

Amendments to IFRs 10 
and IAs 28 (sept 2014) 
sale or Contribution 
of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate 
or Joint venture

the IAs 28 was amended so that:
a. the current requirements regarding 
the partial gain or loss recognition for 
transactions between an investor and its 
associate or joint venture only apply to 
the gain or loss resulting from the sale 
or contribution of assets that do not con-
stitute a business as defined in IFRs 3 
Business Combinations
b. the gain or loss resulting from the 
sale or contribution to an associate or 
a joint venture of assets that constitute 
a business as defined in IFRs 3 is rec-
ognised in full.
It was also recommended to amend IFRs 
10 so that the gain or loss resulting from 
the sale or contribution of a subsidiary 
that does not constitute a business as 
defined in IFRs 3 to an associate or joint 
venture is recognised only to the extent 
of unrelated investors’ interests in the 
associate or joint venture.
Implementation of this amendment has 
been postponed.

the entity does not have any 
subsidiary or associate and 
not also involved in any form 
of joint venture agreement. 
Hence, this amendment is not 
applicable to the entity.
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New or amended 
 standards and  
effective date

Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial 
statements

IFRIC 23
Uncertainty over Income 
tax treatments

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for 
 uncertainties in income taxes.
the interpretation is to be applied to the 
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), 
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused 
tax credits and tax rates, when there is 
 uncertainty over income tax treatments 
under IAs 12. IFRIC 23 is effective for 
annual reporting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019. Earlier application is 
permitted.

Amendments to IAs 28 
(Oct 2017)
long-term Interests in 
Associates and Joint 
ventures

the amendments in long-term Interests 
in Associates and Joint ventures (Amend-
ments to IAs 28) are:
•  Paragraph 14A has been added to clarify 
that an entity applies IFRs 9 including its 
impairment requirements, to long-term 
interests in an associate or joint venture 
that form part of the net investment 
in the associate or joint venture but to 
which the equity method is not applied.
•  Paragraph 41 has been deleted because 
the Board felt that it merely reiterated 
requirements in IFRs 9 and had created 
confusion 
about the accounting for long-term 
interests. the amendments are 
 accompanied by an illustrative example.
the amendments are effective for 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2019. Earlier application is permitted

the entity is does not have any 
subsidiary or associate and 
not also involved in any form 
of joint venture agreement.
Hence, this amendment is not 
applicable to the entity.
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New or amended stan-
dards and effective date

Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial 
statements

Annual Improvements 
to IFRs standards 
2015–2017 Cycle (Dec 
2017)IFRs 3, IFRs 11, IAs 
12 and IAs 23 Amend-
ments

In December 2017, the IAsB published 
Annual Improvements to IFRs standards 
2015–2017 Cycle, containing the following 
amendments to IFRss:
•  IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 
11 Joint Arrangements — the amend-
ments to IFRs 3 clarify that when an 
entity obtains control of a business that 
is a joint operation, it remeasures pre-
viously held interests in that business. 
the amendments to IFRs 11 clarify that 
when an entity obtains joint control of 
a business that is a joint operation, the 
entity does not remeasure previously 
held interests in that business.
•  IAS  12  Income  Taxes  —  The  amend-
ments clarify that the requirements in the 
former paragraph 52B (to recognise the 
income tax consequences of dividends 
where the transactions or events that 
generated distributable profits are rec-
ognised) apply to all income tax con-
sequences of dividends by moving the 
paragraph away from paragraph 52A that 
only deals with situations where there are 
different tax rates for distributed and un-
distributed profits.
•  IAS 23 Borrowing Costs — The amend-
ments clarify that if any specific borrowing 
remains outstanding after the related 
asset is ready for its intended use or sale, 
that borrowing becomes part of the 
funds that an entity borrows generally 
when calculating the capitalisation rate 
on general borrowings.

Amendments to IAs19 
(February 2018) Plan 
Amendment, Curtailment 
or settlement

On 7 February 2018, the IAsB published 
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or set-
tlement (Amendments to IAs 19) to 
harmonise accounting practices and to 
provide more relevant information for 
decision-making. An entity applies the 
amendments to plan amendments, cur-
tailments or settlements occurring on or 
after the beginning of the first annual 
reporting period that begins on or after 
1 January 2019.
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New or amended stan-
dards and effective date

Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial 
statements

Amendments to Refer-
ences to the Concep-
tual Framework in IFRs 
standards

the Conceptual Framework for Financial 
Reporting (Conceptual Framework) 
describes the objective of and concepts 
for general purpose financial reporting. 
It is a practical tool that helps the IAsB 
to develop requirements in IFRs® 
standards based on consistent concepts. 
Consideration of these concepts, in turn, 
should result in the IAsB developing IFRs 
standards that require entities to provide 
financial information that is useful to 
investors, lenders and other creditors.
the IAsB decided to revise the Conceptu-
al Framework because some important 
issues were not covered and some 
guidance was unclear or out of date. the 
revised Conceptual Framework, issued by 
the IAsB in March 2018, includes:
•  A new chapter on measurement;
•  Guidance on reporting financial perfor-
mance;
•  Improved definitions of an asset and a 
liability, and guidance supporting these 
definitions; and
•  Clarifications  in  important  areas,  such 
as the roles of stewardship, prudence and 
measurement uncertainty in financial 
reporting.
the IAsB also updated references to the 
Conceptual Framework in IFRs standards 
by issuing Amendments to References 
to the Conceptual Framework in IFRs 
standards. this was done to support 
transition to the revised Conceptual 
Framework for companies that develop 
accounting policies using the Concep-
tual Framework when no IFRs standard 
applies to a particular transaction.
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New or amended stan-
dards and effective date

Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial 
statements

IFRs 17 Insurance 
Contracts

IFRs 17 establishes the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation 
and disclosure of insurance contracts 
within the scope of the standard. the 
objective of IFRs 17 is to ensure that an 
entity provides relevant information that 
faithfully represents those contracts. this 
infor mation gives a basis for users of 
financial statements to assess the effect 
that insurance contracts have on the 
entity’s financial position, financial per-
formance and cash flows.
IFRs 17 was issued in May 2017 and 
applies to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The accounting policies set out below have been 
applied consistently to the periods presented in these 
financial statements.

(b) Changes in accounting policy and 
disclosures

uBA pensions Custodian Limited has adopted iFrS 9 
as issued by the iASB in July 2014 with a date of 
transition of 1 January 2018, which resulted in 
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to 
the amounts previously recognised in the financial 
statements. uBA pensions Custodian Limited did not 
early adopt any of iFrS 9 in previous periods.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of iFrS 9, 
uBA pensions Custodian Limited elected not to restate 
comparative figures. Any adjustments to the carrying 
amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the date 
of transition were recognised in the opening retained 
earnings and other reserves of the current period. 
uBA pensions Custodian Limited does not currently 
apply hedge accounting.

Consequently, for notes disclosures, the amendments 
to iFrS 7 disclosures have also only been applied 
to the current period. The comparative period notes 
disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the 
prior year.

The adoption of iFrS 9 has resulted in changes in 
our accounting policies for recognition, classification 
and measurement of financial assets and financial 
liabilities and impairment of financial assets. iFrS 9 
also significantly amends other standards dealing 
with financial instruments such as iFrS 7 ‘Financial 
instruments: disclosures’

Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of 
the adoption of iFrS 9 on uBA pensions Custodian 
Limited. Further details of the specific iFrS 9 account-
ing policies applied in the current period (as well as 
the previous iAS 39 accounting policies applied in 
the comparative period) are described in more detail 
in sections below.
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6bi Classification and measurement of financial instruments
The measurement category and the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities in accordance with iAS 
39 and iFrS 9 at 1 January 2018 are compared as follows:

IAS 39 IFRS 9
Measurement 

Category
Carrying 
Amount

Measure-
ment Cate-

gory

Carrying 
Amount

₦’000 ₦’000
Cash and balances with 
banks HtM  92,672 Amortised 

Cost  92,672 

loans and advances to 
staff HtM  69,562 Amortised 

Cost  69,105 

Investment securities     HtM  8,420,758 Amortised 
Cost  8,413,895 

There is no change in the classification and measurement rules of financial liabilities between iAS 39 and iFrS 
9, except in the recognition of fair value gains or losses due to changes in own credit risk for financial liabilities 
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

uBA pensions Custodian Nigeria Limited does not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value through 
profit or loss.
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6bii Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAs 39 to IFRs 9
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets, from their previous measurement 
category in accordance with iAS 39 to their new measurement categories upon transition to iFrS 9 on 1 
January 2018:

IAS 39 
 carrying 
amount

Reclassifi-
cations

Remea-
surements

Expected 
credit losses

IFRS 9 
carrying 
amount

₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000
Amortised cost
Loans and advances to 
staff
Opening balance under 
IAs 39 69,562  -    -    -   

ECl Allowance  -    -    -   (457)
Closing balance under 
IFRs 9  -    -    -    -   69,105

Investment securities - 
amortised cost
Opening balance under 
IAs 39 8,420,758  -    -    -   

ECl Allowance  -    -    -   (6,863)
Closing balance under 
IFRs 9  -    -    -    -   8,413,895

Cash and cash equiva-
lents
Opening balance under 
IAs 39 92,672  -    -    -   

ECl Allowance  -    -    -    -   
Closing balance 92,672

Total financial assets 
measured at amortised 
cost

8,582,992  -    -   (7,320) 8,575,672

The total remeasurement loss of ₦7.3 million was recognised in opening reserves at 1 January 2018.
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a. As of 1 January 2018, the Company’s analy-
sis highlighted the components of its cash and 
cash equivalents as including short term deposit 
(i.e. call deposits, bank accounts balances held 
with banks and treasury bills less than 90 days). 
The balances meet the Sppi criterion and they 
were classified as financial assets carried at 
amortized cost.

 The Company further assessed for ECL based 
on the counterparty credit ratings adjusted to 
reflect current and forward-looking information 
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of 
the counterparties to settle the balances and this 
resulted in a nil loss allowance provision.

b. The Company also assessed its investment secu-
rities and other receivables balances previously 
carried at held to maturity under iAS 39 and con-
cluded that the payments meet the Sppi criterion 
and based on the Company’s business model 
for holding the balances, concluded that they 
remain valued at amortised cost as was the case 
under iAS 39. The balances were assessed for 
impairment and the ECL recognised amounted 
to ₦7.3million.

7 Revenue recognition

Custody fees
Custody fees represents fees earned by the company 
for holding pension fund assets on behalf of pension 
fund beneficiaries and their administrators. Custody 
fee income is recognized on an accrual basis as the 
service is rendered and is stated net of tax (vAT).

Interest income
interest income is recognised using the effective 
interest method. it includes interest income from 
cash and cash equivalents.

The effective interest method is a method of cal-
culating the amortised cost of a financial asset or 
a financial liability and of allocating the interest 
income or interest expense over the relevant period. 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly dis-
counts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument 

or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability. when calculating the effective interest rate, 
the Company estimates cash flows considering all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for 
example, prepayment options) but does not consider 
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees 
and points paid or received between parties to the 
contract that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premi-
ums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial 
assets has been written down as a result of an impair-
ment loss, interest income is recognised using the 
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows 
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Other income
Other income includes Admin and processing fees 
and others relating to transactions carried out during 
the year.

8 Financial Risk Management 
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of 
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, 
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate 
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
Company’s overall risk management programme 
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the 
Company’s financial performance.  

risk management is carried out by the compliance 
unit under policies approved by the board of direc-
tors. The risk department identifies and evaluates 
financial risks in close co-operation with all operat-
ing units. The board provides written principles for 
overall risk management, as well as written policies 
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, 
credit risk, use non-derivative financial instruments, 
and investment of excess liquidity.

(a) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, 
fees receivable from pension Fund Administrators 
under the Company's management as well as 
debt instruments (Treasury bills). For cash or fixed 
deposits with banks and financial institutions, only 
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independently rated parties with a minimum rating 
of ’A’ are accepted. if funds are independently rated, 
these ratings are used. if there is no independent rat-
ing, risk control assesses the credit quality of the fund 

taking into account its financial position, past expe-
rience and other factors. individual risk limits are set 
based on internal or external ratings in accordance 
with limits set by the board. 

The following table summarises the company’s maximum exposure to credit risk related to financial instruments. 

31 December
2018 2018 2018

₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000
Held to Maturity Amortized Cost Impact on SPL/SOCI 

loans and advances to staff   63,994  63,236  758 
treasury Bill  8,848,307  8,818,064  30,243 
Money market placements  449,132  448,264  868 

 9,361,433  9,329,564  31,869 

Credit risk is also mitigated by investing in free risk 
investment. Loans granted to staff are deducted 
directly at source from their monthly salary.

b. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter 
difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with 
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering 
cash or another financial asset. The entity approach 
to managing liquidity is to ensure  that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking  the entity’s 
reputation.

procedures are in place to manage this risk amongst 
which is the company invest in money market instru-
ments and risk free assets.

c. Market Risk
market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash-
flows of financial instrument will fluctuate as a result 
of changes in market factors which include three 
types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk (includ-
ing related inflation) and equity risk.

i. Currency risk

ii. interest rate risk (including related inflation)

iii. Equity risk
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i. Custody fee for retirement Savings Accounts 
(rSA) is charged on Net Asset value of the fund at 
0.25% average rate on monthly basis.

ii. Custody fee on retiree Account is charged 
on income generated by the fund at the end of 

9 Net custody fee

2018 2017
₦’000 ₦’000

Net Custody fee  5,466,506 5,034,542 

every month at the agreed rate within the rage of 
0.1 - 0.15%.

The rates of custody fee to be charged are agreed 
with the pension Fund Administrators and can vary 
with each pension Fund Administrators.

10 Interest income

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Cash and balances with banks  73,989  11,352 
loans and advances to staff  13,087  11,269 
Investment securities  1,132,558  1,272,127 

 1,219,634  1,294,748 

i. Cash and balances with banks represents 
interest earned  on balances with bank and term 
deposits.

ii. interest income on loans & advances represents 
interest income charged on personal, vehicle, insur-
ance and mortgage loans granted to staff. The 
company grants loans to staff in accordance with 
the company’s human resources policy at the rate of 
5% per annum. These loans were granted at a below 
market interest rate. under iFrS, the difference 

between the rate granted and a market related rate 
is an employee benefit, which must be deferred and 
recognised as an employee expense over the period 
of the loan. The loans have been fair valued at an 
annual interest rate of 22% per annum which man-
agement believes fairly represents the market lend-
ing rate. The resultant difference in interest charged 
is included in staff cost.

iii investment securities include interest earned on 
treasury bills for the period.

11 Other operating income 

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Other income  3,801  52,717 
staff bonus  -    150,606 

 3,801  203,323 
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ii staff bonus.
The management approve to set aside 5% of profit before tax as staff bonus on yearly basis. The management 
at their discretion approve a certain amount to be disbursed to staff while the excess is left in the provision 
account written back and recognised as other income in the statement of comphrehensive income.

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
At 1 January  253,475  150,606 
Provision for staff bonus  211,543  253,475 
Amount Paid  (191,736)  -   
Amount written back  (61,739)  (150,606)

 211,543  253,475 

The above table shows provision made in year 2018 and 2017 and the total amount disbursed as bonus 
to staff.

12 Personnel expenses

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
staff cost  432,827  405,910 
Contribution to contributory pension plans  19,672  17,977 
Expenses on loans and  advances to staff  5,526  6,520 
Other staff costs (Note 12 (a))  156,102  280,175 

 614,127  710,582 

Staff cost comprises of staff emoluments for the year ended 31 december, 2018.

NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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12a   Other Staff costs comprises of the following: 

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Management support   700  2,271 
staff incentive  bonus  149,804  255,975 
long service Award  5,105  14,595 
Medical expenses  493  7,334 

 156,102  280,175 

13 Other operating expenses

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Other premises and equipment costs (i)  119,422  85,122 
Auditors remuneration  11,000  11,000 
Professional fees  16,263  29,748 
General administrative expenses (ii)  591,185  902,754 

 737,870  1,028,624 

i Other premises and equipment costs includes: 

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Depreciation and amortization  94,603  54,951 
Repairs & Maintenance  22,185  26,175 
Motor running expenses  1,486  1,506 
Diesel & Waters  1,148  2,490 

 119,422  85,122 

NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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ii General administrative expenses include: 

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
travelling & Hotel Bills  11,147  9,112 
training  16,471  23,018 
security & Cleaning services  3,160  1,947 
Directors expenses  64,310  68,283 
Printing & stationeries  2,585  2,355 
Postages, telex & telephone  2,956  2,770 
Advertisment & Business Promotion  11,252  16,761 
Entertainment, Office & Computer Consumables  6,962  5,225 
subscription  9,445  2,932 
Insurance  6,344  8,353 
support services  245,485  570,902 
CsCs, stamp Duties & Bank Charges  3,739  1,085 
Industrial training Fund  3,302  7,840 
Rent & service Charge  75,725  61,165 
Pension Protection Fund  124,580  113,185 
Other Reimbursable expenses  3,722  7,821 

 591,185  902,754 

* included in support services above is an amount of N245 million: (2017: N564 million) representing the 
cost of technical and other ancillary services rendered to uBA pensions Custodian Limited by the parent 
Company during the year.

14 EcL Impairment allowance on cash and cash equivalents and financial assets at 
amortized cost

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Cash and balances with banks (note 16) 868  -   
loans and advances to staff (note 14.1) 300 457
Investment securities (note 14.1)  23,381  6,863 

 24,549  7,320 

NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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14.1  Movement in ECL Impairment

At 1 January Additions during 
the year

At 31 December

₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000
Cash and balances with banks  -   868 868
loans and advances to staff (note 19) 457 300 757
Investment securities (note 17)  6,863  23,381  30,244 

 7,320  24,549  31,869 

14.2

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000

Cash and balances with banks 868  -    -   868
loans and advances to staff 300  -    -   300
Investment securities      23,381  -    -    23,381 

 24,549  -    -    24,549 

15 Income tax expense

Recognised in statement of comprehensive income

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Current tax expense
Current year  1,223,311  1,074,346 
Education tax  83,395  72,257 
Information technology levy  53,134  47,934 
Under provision in prior year  9,877  -   

 1,369,717  1,194,537 
Deferred tax expense   14,227  (32,826)
Total income tax expense  1,383,944  1,161,711 
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16 cash and cash equivalents

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Cash and balances with banks  19,738  22,223 
Money market placements  450,690  70,449 

 470,428  92,672 
Expected credit loss (note 14)  (868)  -   

 469,560  92,672 

17 Investment securities 

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
treasury bills at amortised cost  8,848,307 8,420,758
Expected credit loss  (note 14.1)  (30,243)  -   

8,818,064 8,420,758

18 Deferred tax liabilities/ (assets)

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
At 1 January  68,764  35,938 
(Charge) /write back for the year  (14,227)  32,826 
At 31 December  54,537  68,764 

Deferred tax income consists of the following losses  carried forward and taxable temporary 
differences.

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Property and equipment (Deferred tax liabilities)  21,013  12,348 
Others (Deferred tax asset)  (75,550)  (81,112)

 (54,537)  (68,764)
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19 Other assets

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Accounts receivable and prepayments (19a) 1,267,083  1,233,752 
staff advances (19b) 63,236  69,562 

1,330,319  1,303,314 

19a  Accounts receivables includes the following:

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Fee receivables from PFAs 581,742  475,170 
Prepayment 685,278  758,442 
Admin cash advance 63  140 

1,267,083  1,233,752 

19b  Loans and advances to staff comprises:

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
vehicle loan  14,038  12,073 
Personal loan  27,362  32,053 
Insurance loan  -    19 
Mortgage loan  22,594  25,417 

 63,994  69,562 
Expected credit loss (note 14)  (758) -

 63,236  69,562 

The company grants loans to staff in accordance with the company’s human resources policy at the rate 5% 
per annum. The loans have been fair valued at an annual interest rate of 22% which management believes 
fairly represents the market lending rate. The resultant difference in interest charged is included in staff cost.

NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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20 Property and equipment
 31 December 2018

Furniture & 
fittings

Computer  
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles

Leasehold 
Improve-

ment

Safe & 
Vaults

Total

₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000
Cost  
At 1  January 2018 62,613  69,064  59,405 -  3,281 194,363 
Additions  79,276  48,810  -    71,885  -   199,971 
At 31 December 2018 141,889  117,874  59,405  71,885  3,281 394,334 

Depreciation and 
 impairment losses  
At 1 January 2018  52,020  51,694  26,331 -  1,761 131,806 
Charge for the year  18,527  16,297  9,187  14,093  164  58,268 
At 31 December 2018  70,547  67,991  35,518  14,093  1,925 190,074 

Carrying amounts  
At 31 December 2018  71,342  49,883  23,887  57,792  1,356 204,260 

At 31 December 2017  10,593  17,370  33,074  -    1,520  62,557 
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Property and equipment
31 December 2017

Furniture & 
fittings

Computer  
Equip-

ment

Motor 
Vehicles

Safe & 
Vaults

Total

₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000
Cost  
At 1 January 2017 61,652 65,329 31,927 3,281 162,189
Additions  1,030 3,882 34,125 - 39,037
Disposal (69) (147) (6,647) - (6,863)
At 31 December 2017  62,613 69,064 59,405 3,281 194,363

Depreciation
At 1 January 2017 47,520 43,523 26,372 1,597 119,012
Charge for the year  4,569 8,318 6,605 164 19,656
Disposal (69) (147) (6,646) - (6,862)
At 31 December 2017 52,020 51,694 26,331 1,761 131,806

Carrying amounts  
At 31 December 2017 10,593 17,370 33,074 1,520 62,557

At 31 December 2016 14,132 21,806 5,555 1,684 43,177
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21 Intangible assets
31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Cost 
At 1 January  262,751  248,772 
Additions  -    13,979 
At 31 December  262,751  262,751 
Amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 January  185,594  150,299 
Amortisation for the period  36,335  35,295 
At 31 December 2018  221,929  185,594 
At 31 December 2017  40,822  77,157 

intangible assets represent core computer software purchased for business operations. The following applica-
tions are currently in use by the company:

•	 Custody plus (Core Custody application)

•	 Laserfiche (EdmS application)

•	 Symplus (Accounting)

•	 human manager (payroll)

Amortisation is calculated using the straight–line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

22 Trade and other payables 

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Accounts payable 
Creditors and accruals  918,442  870,950 
staff incentive bonus  211,543  253,475 
Information technology levy  40  40 

 1,130,025  1,124,465 
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23 Dividend Payable

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
At 1 January  3,200,000 
Interim dividend  3,340,000  3,200,000 
Payment during the year (3,200,000)
At 31 December  3,340,000  3,200,000 

in respect of the current financial year, at the Board meeting as at 21 december, 2018, directors recom-
mended approval of an interim dividend of ₦1.67k per share amounting to ₦3.34billion (2017: ₦3.2billion).
in line with the National pension Commission (penCom) circular pENCOm/iNSp/Cir/Surv/12/04, payment 
of these dividends will be subject to the approval of penCom.

24 Income tax

a) Per statement of financial position:

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
At 1 January  1,195,191  1,027,949 
Charge for the year (note 16) 1,369,717  1,194,537 
tax paid (1,205,068)  (1,027,295)
At 31 December 1,359,840  1,195,191 

The charge for income tax in these financial statements is based on the provisions of the Companies income Tax 
Act CAp C21 LFN 2004 as amended, while Education Tax is based on Education Tax Act CAp E4 LFN 2004.
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25 Effective tax rate reconciliation

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 % ₦’000 %
Profit before tax  5,313,395 100  4,793,407 100

Tax Charge:
Company income tax 1,223,311 23.02 1,074,346 22.41 
Information technology tax  53,134  1.00  47,934  1.00 
Education tax  83,395  1.57  72,257  1.51 
Deferred tax  14,227  0.27  (32,826)  (0.68)

Effective tax rate  1,374,067 25.9  1,161,711 24.2

Adjustments

Information technology tax  (53,134)  (1.00)  (47,934)  (1.00)
Education tax  (83,395)  (1.57)  (72,257)  (1.51)
Deferred tax  (348)  (0.01)
Effect of permanent differences  356,828  6.72  394,445  8.23 

Statutory tax rate  1,594,018 30  1,435,965 30

26 share capital

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Share capital comprises: 
(i) Authorised - 
2,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of ₦1 each  2,000,000  2,000,000 
(ii) Issued and fully paid - 
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of ₦1 each  2,000,000  2,000,000 
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27 Retained earnings

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
At 1 January  2,505,566  2,073,870 
Interim dividend  (3,340,000)  (3,200,000)
IFRs 9 Day 1 Adjustment (note 14)  (7,320)  -   
transfer from other statement of comprehensive income  3,929,451  3,631,696 
At 31 December  3,087,697  2,505,566 

retained earnings are the carried forward recognised income net of expenses plus current period profit 
attributable to shareholders.

in respect of the current financial year (2018), members of the board recommended payment of interim 
dividend of ₦1.67k per share amounting to ₦3.34billion at the Board meeting held on 21 december, 2018.
in line with the National pension Commission (penCom) circular PENCOM/INSP/CIR/SURV/12/04, payment 
of these dividends will be subject to the approval of penCom.

28 Related party transactions
.1 during the year, the company had business transactions with related companies. The transactions were 

in the normal course of business and the amounts recognised in the financial statements from these 
transactions are as stated below:

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000

Interest income 
United Bank for Africa Plc  - Parent Company  68,307  8,025 
Support Services 
United Bank for Africa Plc  - Parent Company  245,485  564,000 
Cash and cash equivalent 
United Bank for Africa Plc  - Parent Company  19,673  22,223 
Placement 
United Bank for Africa Plc  - Parent Company  450,690  70,449 
Payable 
United Bank for Africa Plc  - Parent Company  422,287  605,449 

uBA pensions Custodian is a wholly owned subsidiary of uBA plc. The above are the transactions and  balances 
arising from dealings with related parties during the year.
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.2 Information Regarding Directors and Employee 
key management personnel constitutes those individual who have the authority and the responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of uBA pensions Custodian Limited, directly or indirectly, 
including any director (whether executive or non-executive). The individual who comprise the key management 
personnel are the Board of directors as well as certain key management staff and officers.

The following table describes all compensation paid to, awarded to, or earned by each of the key manage-
ment personnel in 2018 for services rendered in all capacities to the company.

1 Chairman and Directors’ emoluments

 2018  2017 
₦’000 ₦’000

Fees and sitting allowances: 
Chairman  5,000  3,833 
Non-executive directors  36,250  40,000 
Emoluments of executives  7,060  6,450 
Others  16,000  18,000 

 64,310  68,283 

2018 2017
Number Number

Executive 2 2
Non-executive 5 6

 7  8 

2018 2017
Number Number

Average number of persons employed during the year:
MD/CEO & Executive Director 2 2
Management staff 6 7
Non - Management staff 72 71

 80  80 
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2 Compensation for the above personnel (including executive director)

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
salaries & Wages  432,827  409,724 
Defined contribution plans  19,672  17,977 

 452,499  427,701 

3  The number of employees other than directors who received emoluments in the following ranges 
(Excluding pension contribution ) were;

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
₦ 300,001    - N2,000,000  21  26 
₦ 2,000,001 - N2,800,000  -    -   
₦ 2,800,001 - N3,500,000  20  19 
₦ 3,500,001 - N4,000,000  17  8 
₦ 4,000,001 - N5,500,000  3  8 
₦ 5,500,001 - N6,500,000  2  3 
₦ 6,500,001 - N7,800,000  7  7 
₦ 7,800,001 - N9,000,000  -    -   
₦ 9,000,001 - above  10  9 

 80  80 

4 Directors
renumeration paid to directors was;

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Fees and Sitting allowance; 
Chairman  5,000  3,833 
Non-executive directors  36,250  40,000 
Emoluments of executives  7,060  6,450 
Others  16,000  18,000 

 64,310  68,283 
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5 Fees and other emoluments disclosed above includes amounts paid to;

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
the Chairman  1  1 
the highest paid sitting Director  125  125 

6 The number of directors who received fees and other emoluments ( excluding pension contribution) in 
the following ranges

31 December
 2018  2017 

Number Number
₦ 1,000,001 - N3,000,000 - -
₦ 3,000,001 - N5,000,000 - -
₦ 5,000,001  and above 5 6

5 6 

29 critical Accounting Estimates and significant judgements
The company makes estimates and assumptions in determining the carrying amounts of certain assets and lia-
bilities. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting estimate seldom equal the related actual  results.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty, are shown below: 

Judgements made by management in the application of iFrSs that have significant effect on the financial 
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment are disclosed as follows:

Going concern
The company’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is 
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management 
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Deferred tax assets
deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Judgement is required to determine the amount 
of deferred tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together 
with future tax-planning strategies.
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Impairment of available for sale investments
The company reviews its equity securities classified as available for sale investments at each reporting date to 
assess whether they are impaired. This requires exercise of judgement.

The company also records impairment charges on available for sale equity investments when there has been a 
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or 
‘prolonged’ requires judgement. in making this judgement, the company evaluates, among other factors, his-
torical share price movements and duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than cost.

30 Litigations and contingent liabilities
The company in its ordinary course of business was not involved in any suit as at the year end (31 december 
2017: Nil). The directors of the company are not aware of any pending or threatened claims or litigations 
which may be material to the financial statements. There were no other contingent liabilities requiring diclosure 
in this financial statements.

31 compliance with regulatory bodies
The company complied with all law and regulation during the year 2018: 2017 NiL.

32 capital commitments
The company has capital commitments of ₦73.1m as at 31 december 2018 (31 december 2017: NiL)

33 Events after the reporting period
There were no subsequent events which could have a material effect on the state of the company as at 31 
december 2018 or on the profit for the year ended on that date that have not been adequately provided for 
or disclosed in these financial statements.

34 Assets under custody

31 December
2018 2017

₦’000 ₦’000
Bank balances  10,372,117  9,332,671 
treasury bills  285,407,445  283,387,961 
Money market instruments  179,593,627  142,864,348 
Bonds  1,404,951,820 1,195,084,159 
Equities  159,308,615  153,286,322 
Receivables  77,288  1,399,124 
Mutual funds  12,046,289  9,308,836 
Investment properties  6,256,823  5,584,783 

2,058,014,024  1,800,248,204 
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(a) Financial Risk Management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair 
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s 
overall risk management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s 
financial performance.

risk management is carried out by the compliance unit under policies approved by the board of directors. The 
risk department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with all operating units. The board 
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such 
as interest rate risk, credit risk, use non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, fees receivable from pension Fund Administrators under the 
Company’s management as well as debt instruments (Treasury bills). For cash or fixed deposits with banks and 
financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of ’A’ are accepted. if funds are 
independently rated, these ratings are used. if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit 
quality of the fund taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. individual risk 
limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of 
credit limits is regularly monitored. Custody fees are affected against the net assets of the fund.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does not expect any losses from 
non-performance by any fund under the Company’s management.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 december 2018 is the carrying amount of the financial assets 
(cash and bank balances, investment in debt securities and Account receivables) set out in the statement of 
financial position.

NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)



77UBA Pensions | 2018 Annual Report

NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)

Concentration of Risks of Financial Assets With Credit Risk Exposure

(a) Geographical Sectors
All credit risk exposures (without taking into account any collateral held or other credit support) are maintained 
within Nigeria. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk is set out below:

Cash and 
Bank Bal-

ances

Invest-
ment in 
Treasury 

Bills

Custody 
fees and 
other re-
ceivables

Total

₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000
31-Dec-18
Nigeria  469,560  8,818,064  581,742  9,869,366 
31-Dec-17
Nigeria  92,672  8,420,758  475,170  8,988,600 
31-Dec-18
Financial liabilities( contractual maturity)  3,340,000  3,340,000 
31-Dec-17
Financial liabilities( contractual maturity)  3,200,000  3,200,000 

Credit Quality of Receivables
receivables held by the Company consists of custody fee which are all classified as neither past due nor 
impaired. The risk of default is considered as low.

The credit quality of cash and bank balances are neither past due nor impaired. The banks which are the 
depositories have a credit rating of “A” as assessed by Agusto & Co rating agency; and  this rating is adopted 
by the Company. The risk of default is considered as low.

Credit Quality of Investment in Debt Securities
All investments in debt instruments are neither past due nor impaired.

These investments which are government treasury bills are rated as A+ to A- as assessed by Agusto & Co rating 
agency and this rating is adopted by the Company.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligation as 
they fall due or will have to meet the obligations at excessive costs. This risk could arise from mismatches in 
the timing of cash flows. in extreme circumstances, lack of liquidity could result in reductions in the statement 
of financial position and sales of assets, or potentially an inability to fulfill lending commitments.

The Company does not have any borrowings. Surplus cash is invested in interest bearing current accounts and 
short term placements, choosing instruments with appropriate maturities.
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Management of Liquidity Risk
The Company’s liquidity management process ensures that the following are carried out:

a. Active monitoring of the timing of cash flows and maturity profiles of assets and liabilities to ensure mis-
matches are within stipulated limits.

b. managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities

The table below analyses the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. 

2018 2017
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000
Financial assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents  469,560  469,560  92,672  92,672 
Carried at amortised cost  8,848,307  8,818,064  8,420,758  8,420,758 
Fees Receivables  581,742  581,742  475,170  475,170 

 9,899,609  9,869,366  8,988,600  8,988,600 
Financial liabilities
Dividend payable  3,340,000  3,340,000  3,200,000  3,200,000 
Creditors and accruals  918,442  918,442  870,950  870,950 

 4,258,442  4,258,442  4,070,950  4,070,950 

NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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NOTES TO ThE FiNANCiAL STATEmENTS (continued)

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value
iFrS 7 paragraph 25 requires the disclosure of the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities by class 
in a way that permits it to be compared with its carrying amount for each class of financial asset and financial 
liability.  The Company’s financial instruments are held to maturity and the amortised cost of the instruments 
closely approximates the fair value of the instrument.

Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain 
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This 
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including 
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the balance sheet). Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as 
shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.

during 2018, the Company’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2012, was to maintain the gearing ratio of 
0%.  The Company achieved this gearing ratio in 2018 and 2017 as it had no borrowings.

2018 2017
₦’000 ₦’000

total borrowings  -    -   
total equity 5,087,697  4,505,566 
Gearing ratio 0% 0%
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2018 2017
₦’000 % ₦’000 %

Gross earnings 6,689,941 6,532,613
Impairment losses on financial assets (24,549) -
Bought-in materials and services - local (658,897) (980,534)
VALUED ADDED 6,006,495 100 5,552,079 100
Applied as follows:
In payment of employees:
salaries, bonuses and benefits 614,127 10 710,582 13
In payment to government:
taxation 1,369,717 23 1,146,603 21
Information technology Development levy 53,134 1 47,934 1
Retained for future  replacement of 
assets and expansion of business:
Deferred taxation (54,537)  (1)  (39,687)  (1)
Depreciation on fixed assets 94,603  2  54,951  1 
Profit for the year 3,929,451  65  3,631,696  65 

 6,006,495 100  5,552,079 100

value added is the wealth created by the efforts of the company and its employees and its allocation between 
employees, shareholders, government and re-investment for the future creation of  further wealth.

statement Of Value Added 
FOR tHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2018
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Financial summary

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000 ₦’000

ASSETS 

Cash and cash
equivalent  469,560  92,672  931  748,142  730,484 

Investment 
 securities  8,818,064  8,420,758  6,741,795  6,039,100  5,238,966 

Property and 
 equipment  204,260  62,557  43,177  46,652  58,753 

Intangible asset  40,822  77,157  98,473  131,425  125,052 

Other assets  1,330,319  1,303,314  975,945  855,378  768,544 

Deferred tax 
assets  75,550  81,112  35,938  45,792  40,077 

Total assets 10,938,575 10,037,570 7,896,259 7,866,489 6,961,876

lIABIlItIEs 

trade and other 
payables  1,130,025  1,124,465  394,440  684,198  516,450 

Current tax 
 liabilities  1,359,840  1,195,191  1,027,949  944,906  894,823 

Other liabilities  3,340,000  3,200,000  2,400,000  2,500,000  2,000,000 

Deferred tax 
 liabilities  21,013  12,348  -    -    -   

5,850,878 5,532,004 3,822,389 4,129,104 3,411,273

CAPITAL AND 
RESERVE 

share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Retained  earnings 3,087,697 2,505,566 2,073,870 1,737,385 1,550,603

shareholders’ 
fund 5,087,697 4,505,566 4,073,870 3,737,385 3,550,603

Total liabilities 10,938,575 10,037,570 7,896,259 7,866,489 6,961,876

Assets under 
custody 2,058,014,024 1,800,248,204 1,459,855,594 1,257,614,349 1,164,273,894
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uBA pension Custodian Ltd. emerged as the overall winner in the Organizational 
Category of the 2018 Nigerian risk Awards (insurance and pension Services).  
The Award is in recognition of the Company’s commitment to Excellence and 
Best practice in risk management. 

The Nigerian risk Award is powered by Conrad Clark (risk management 
Consultants), the Business day, the Convention on Business integrity, the uk 
institute of risk management (irm) and their other local and international 
partners.  The award was announced at the Nigerian risks Summit, which was 
chaired by dr. Christopher kolade in Lagos, on September 6, 2018.   

Also remarkable are the comments of the Award Judges on the Award to uBA 
pensions: “A very impressive and comprehensive risk project, which involved all 
staff of uBA pensions”. “From the submission of this organization, (uBA pensions 
Custodian Ltd) there is no doubt that it takes the issue of risk seriously and has 
taken it beyond being a regulatory requirement to the point of Erm being used 
as a competitive advantage” 

This Award goes to show that uBA pensions Custodian Ltd. is living its mission, 
which is to create a safe haven for pension assets and deliver world-class custo-
dian services, using skilled and highly-motivated staff, state-of-the-art technol-
ogy and a stakeholder approach in the conduct of our business. it  is committed 
to the core values of Enterprise, Excellence and Execution . 

UBA Pensions custodian Limited wins the 
Prestigious Nigerian Risk Awards 2018
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tournaments 
& sPorts

The annual sporting event has been described in 
some quarters as a ’mini-olympics’ in terms of the 
participation and quality of activities. This edition, 
which was held at Funturf international, Admiralty 
way, Lekki, phase 1 Lagos had over 800 partici-
pants in attendance.

The tournament in its 9th year witnessed the partici-
pation of 11 pFAs and the host namely:

Leadway Pensure, 
ARM Pension, 
Crusader Sterling Pension, 
AIICO Pension, 
Legacy Pension, 
Fidelity Pension, 
Radix Pensions, 
AXA Mansard Pension, 
PAL Pensions, 
IEI Anchor Pensions, 
Stanbic IBTC Pensions, and 
UBA Pensions.

AiiCO pension managers Ltd. emerged the over-
all winner of the competition with 3 gold, 1 Silver 
and 1 Bronze medals. Stanbic iBTC pensions and 
Arm pension were the first and second runners up 

respectively with 2 gold, 2 Sliver, 1 bronze and 1 
gold, 3 Sliver and 3 Bronze medals. The winner for 
the 5-a-side football competition - the cynosure of 
the event - was iEi Anchor pensions.

Apart from the 5-a-side football competition for men, 
other sporting events at the tournament included:

Sack race relay, 
Table tennis (male and female), 
Egg and spoon race (female), 
Chess, 
Scrabble, 
Snooker, 
Penalty shootout and 
The FIFA 17 virtual game.

FIVE-A-sIDE FOOTBAL TOURNAMENT
The 2018 edition of the Annual 5-A-side football tournament organized by UBA 
Pensions Custodian Limited was held on the Saturday May 5, 2018 with attendance 
and participation by staff and families of top Pension Fund Administrators(PFAs) across 
the country.

TOURNAMENTS 
& sPORTs



in all, 84 medals and 30 awards were given to out-
standing participants at the competition, while the 
overall three best Teams received trophies. Children 
were not left out of the event as lots of entertaining 
games were provided with plenty to eat and drink.

 mr. Bayo yusuf, the managing director, in his open-
ing remarks welcomed everyone on behalf of the 
staff, management and Board of uBA pensions.

he stated that the sports initiative was not just about 
games being played but about learning life’s lessons 
of failure, joy, disappointment, excitement, winning 
and losing.

he stressed that it was specifically suited for develop-
ing certain skills such as tolerance, team spirit, loyalty 
and fair play. in his words ‘’Ethics and values that we 
learn on the sport field lay a foundation for a more 
peaceful and humane world’’.

in conclusion, he noted that uBA pensions’ vision 
of being a leading pension fund custodian was not 
just only about assets under custody or profitability 
but about building a better and an enduring pension 
industry where operators cooperate to compete.

tournaments
& sports
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Get more out of Life
We are fully committed to supporting 
you through the important phases, so 
you can get the most out of life.
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GOING 

 BEYOND 

 EXCELLENCE

PRODUCT OFFERINGS

Term Assurance 

Life Annuity for Retirees

Group Life Assurance Scheme

Keyman/Credit Life Assurance Scheme 

Education Suppert Plan

Endowment Policy

Salary Protection Insurance Scheme 

Capital Appreciation and Income Plan 

Investment Linked Assurance Scheme

Deposit Linked Assurance Scheme

And Many More.

NON-LIFE 

Motor 

Marine 

Bonds 

Fire 

Burglary 

Money 

Professional Indemnity 

Public Liability 

Fidelity Guarantee 

Goods in Transit 

Large Industrial Risks

LIFE 
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